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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CrE i

Revenue

Gross Profit
Profit for the year
Total Assets
Total Equity

Key Financial Ratios
Gross profit margin
Net profit margin
Return on equity
Return on total assets
Dividend payout ratio
Interest coverage ratio
Current ratio

Quick ratio

Gearing ratio

W a
7
FRmm ]
MEE
HEmABER

FEMBLER
EFE
eSS
RAREIHRE
A EDRE
KSR
FMEEMR
mENEEER
EELL R
BABELEX

2023
20234

(HK$ million)
(B&#T)

462.2
77.5
24.7

275.0

211.3

16.8%

5.4%

11.7%

9.0%

40.0%

300.7 times {2
4.6 times 1Z
4.6 times 12
0.01times 12

Year ended 31 March
HZE3 A31ALEE

2022

20224
(HK$ million)
(B8%T)

Percentage
Change
B thEE

473.7
76.3
22.1

264.2

195.4

16.1%

4.7%

11.3%

8.4%

40.0%

228.4 times 1
4.1 times &
4.1 times &
0.02 times &

-2.4%

1.5%
12.0%
4.08%
8.14%
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On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company” or “Winson”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group” or “Winson Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (‘FY2023").

The prolonged outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease (‘COVID-19”)
has subsided and disease control measures were gradually lifted in Hong
Kong and China since the second half of the year 2022. Commercial
activities in Hong Kong took a sharp rebound as businesses and
consumers took to recoup losses suffered in the past two years. At the
same time, government officials have rolled out a series of international
business forums to put spotlight back onto Hong Kong as a financial
and business hub, and launched campaigns to attract travelers to Hong
Kong. Number of travelers to Hong Kong from January to March 2023
already accumulated to over 4.4 million', as compared to 0.6 million' for
the whole year of 2022. With the surge in inbound travelers and local
consumer demand, it is expected that transportation, food and beverage,
retailing and hospitality operators are on the forefront to experience
a flood of business activities, which in turn will drive up the needs for
hygiene and cleaning services.

The Group remained committed to delivering environment hygiene
services throughout the period of COVID-19 outbreak, and had taken
strategic steps to strengthen organic growth and horizontal business
development. For example, we offered disease-exposed venue deep
cleaning and disinfecting service, general mist disinfection, and promoted
the use of robotic/IT-assisted device to reduce personnel exposure
to the elements and enhance efficiency. We also equipped ourselves
to service the specialisd needs of certain targeted industries, which
crystallised to encouraging results during the FY2023 when the Group
secured environmental hygiene service contracts with new customers
from a wide range of industries, including a public healthcare provider,
a tertiary education institution, a governmental disciplinary force, an
international brand five-star hotel in central business district, and a
property management company associated with a prominent real estate
developer.
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
EREHRS

We believe the Group’s dedication to upholding quality service and
foresight in broadening our service coverage during the period of turmoil
in the past few years had strengthened trust and satisfaction with
business partners and helped the Group to achieve a stable operating
and financial performance for FY2023.

Looking forward, the Group expects a growth in demand for
environmental hygiene and related services, particularly in the hospitality,
food and beverage, and retailing segments to support the influx of
travellers. At the same time, the Group will continue targeting public
hygiene projects available in the governmental and other public service
sector. Furthermore, the Lantau Tomorrow Vision and Northern Metropolis
development plans promulgated by the Hong Kong SAR government will
facilitate the blend in of Hong Kong into the Greater Bay Area as part of
the PRC national development plan. We also look forward to resuming
negotiations on potential horizontal business development opportunities,
including the possible expansion in geographic coverage and in property
related synergized services and the long-term outlook of the Group and
the market in which we operate remains positive.

On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to express our heartfelt
gratitude to our business partners, staff members and shareholders
for their continuous support and we look forward to bringing you more
promising news of the Group soon.

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 19 June 2023

Source:

1. Hong Kong Tourism Board website www.discoverhongkong.com
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s strategic steps to strengthen and diversify its customer
base and service offerings demonstrated positive results during the year
ended 31 March 2023 (“FY2023”), the Group achieved a relatively stable
business performance for FY2023 as compared to the year ended 31
March 2022 (“FY2022” or “Comparative Year”) and also successfully built
up a strong and diverse network as foundation for future growth.

The Group’s unwavering dedication to delivering environment hygiene
services, including various forms of disinfection services for disease
prevention, during the period of COVID-19 outbreak has strengthened
trust and relationship with our portfolio of customers. The Group achieved
a high contract renewal rate of 87.1% for the FY2023, as compared to
74.2% for FY2022. At the same time, the Group also committed strong
effort to culture expansion by offering environmental hygiene services to
a broader range of customers. During the FY2023, the Group secured
environmental hygiene service contracts with new customers from a
wide range of industries, including a tertiary education institution, an
international brand five-star hotel in central business district, a service
property management company associated with a prominent real estate
developer, a governmental disciplinary force, and a public healthcare
service provider. The Group’s success rate of tenders for new contract for
the FY2023 improved to 19.7%, as compared to 15.7% for the FY2022.
With the encouraging results in tendering for new and renewal contracts,
the Group’s total number of contracts on hand as at 31 March 2023 rose
to 117, as compared to 106 as at 31 March 2022.

On the other hand, total revenue of the Group’s environmental hygiene
and related services for the FY2023 recorded a minor decrease by 2.4%,
which management believed was only temporary in nature and mainly
attributable to drop in demand for special cleaning and disinfecting
services in response to the gradual easing of the COVID-19 outbreak
in Hong Kong. Despite a slight drop in revenue, the Group was able to
achieve an improvement in gross profit to HK$77.5 million for FY2023,
as compared to HK$76.3 million for FY2022, through effective use of
resources and stringent cost control.

The Group’s airline catering support services business has been
temporarily suspended since March 2020 and remained so throughout
the FY2023. But with the loosening up of disease control measure
in Hong Kong and the PRC, passenger air traffic has resumed and
consistently rose during FY2023. The Group has been communicating
closely with customer on possible needs for our service to support the
catering required associated with the expected surge in passenger air
travel, which consequently led to the re-commencement, albeit not yet in
full-scale, of our airline catering support service in April 2023.

Further analysis of the Group’s financial results is set out in the section
“Financial Review” below.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE RO

OUTLOOK

With the sharp rebound in local consumer and business activities and
increasing inbound travellers into Hong Kong, it is expected that public
transportation, food and beverage, retailing and hospitality operators
will be amongst the first to take on a surge of business activities, which
would in turn drive up demand for environmental hygiene services. We
envisage that increasing number of business and public service operators
will resort to external support on environmental hygiene solution in order
to focus effort on developing internal manpower to serve core business
needs. The Group has long-established and stable business relationship
with a rail transport operator, shopping centres, international luxury brand
retailers, restaurants and also recently secured contracts with various
new customers including government departments, public health service
provider, and real estate property conglomerate. Accordingly, the Group is
in an advantageous position to capture business growth associated with
a wide range of industries.

Nonetheless, the Group is exposed to labour shortage, adjustment on
statutory minimum wage and rising material prices, all of which will cast
potential downward pressure to profitability of its projects. Faced with
aforesaid challenges, the Group is well-prepared to compete with other
market players by providing technologically advanced environmental
hygiene solutions to improve operational efficiency, and premium hygiene
solution (such as environmental friendly cleaning products, waste up-
cycling, etc.) for enhanced customer satisfaction.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the FY2023, total revenue was approximately HK$462.2 million,
representing a slightly decrease of approximately 2.4% (FY2022:
approximately HK$473.7 million). The decrease in revenue mainly due
to drop in demand for ad-hoc disinfection job in respond to the gradual
easing of the COVID-19 outbreak during FY2023, which in most part
contributed approximately HK$11.5 million decrease in revenue as
compare with the FY2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue by segment:

BIEE R

FEBRZD M DHIWE DTN T -

2022
20224
HK$'000 %
FET
Environmental hygiene and IR £ R ABRARTS
related services 462,197 100.0 473,685 100.0
Airline catering support services 2= & B sk 48 BR 75 = = = -
Total 485t 462,197 100.0 473,685 100.0

For the FY2023, revenue from environmental hygiene and related services
amounted to approximately HK$462.2 million (FY2022: approximately
HK$473.7 million). The airline catering support services was still plagued
with COVID-19 for FY2023, and there was no revenue from this segment
as the same as FY2022.

Cost of Services

For the FY2023 and FY2022, the cost of services of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$384.7 milion and HK$397.3 million respectively,
representing approximately 83.2% and 83.9% of the Group’s revenue for
the corresponding years. The cost of services of the Group comprised
direct wages, consumables and sub-contracting fees.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit slightly increased from approximately HK$76.3 million for
the FY2022 to approximately HK$77.5 million for the FY2023. The overall
gross profit margin increased from approximately 16.1% for the FY2022
to approximately 16.8% for the FY2023. The following table sets forth
breakdown of gross profit and gross profit margin by segment.

20230 & RIBEEEREERFRENS
46225 BB T (202284 F | 8947378 E B
7o) cMEE ST IEIRF N 20230 FHET
COVID-1982 [E & & » I —WN202287 FF It #&
B I ZpER IS URE ©

AR %5 pX 2

20238 F /20228 & » KE BRI RFE
KDRNA384.7TEHEBTTKII7.3E8EE
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83.9%  AEBERFHACIEEZETIE H
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EFREFER

EF BEH20228 FERL76.38 BB T AEM
FE2023 EMHN77 5B BB T o BEERNE
H20228F FE I £916.1%1E N1 £ 202384 FEAIET
16.8% c TR#IIZDEE D EF KEF
IHM :

Year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended 31 March 2022

& F2023F3H3HLILEEE B E2022F3A31HIEFE
Gross Profit Gross Profit
Gross Profit Margin Gross Profit Margin
EF eI ES EF] ESIES
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

FHET THT
Environmental hygiene and IRIEE 4 RABRARRTS

related services 77,485 16.8 76,349 16.1
Airline catering support services il 2= & B =% 48 BR 75 - = - -
Total Ha5t 77,485 16.8 76,349 16.1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE R

The gross profit of environmental hygiene and related services slightly
increased by approximately 1.5% from approximately HK$76.3 million
for the FY2022 to HK$77.5 milion for the FY2023. The gross profit
margin increased from approximately 16.1% of the FY2022 to 16.8% for
FY2023.

The increase of gross profit of environmental hygiene and related
services was mainly due to few major contracts that were not successful
in renewal in mid of last year and these contracts have a relatively
lower gross profit margin. The airline catering support services was still
suspended by customers because of COVID-19 for both FY2023 and
FY2022, and there was no gross profit contribution from this segment.

General Operating Expenses

The general operating expenses increased by approximately 0.5% or
approximately HK$0.3 million, from approximately HK$51.1 million for the
FY2022 to approximately HK$51.4 million for the FY2023. The increase of
general operating expenses was mainly due to the increase of provision
of long service payments as compare with the FY2022.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs for each of the FY2023 and FY2022 were
approximately HK$0.1 million.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the
Year Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group’s profit and total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company for the FY2023 and FY2022 were approximately
HK$24.7 million and HK$22.1 million respectively, representing of
approximately 5.4% and 4.7% of the respective year’s total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the FY2023, the Group’s capital expenditure which mainly
included additions in machinery and equipment and motor vehicles
amounted to approximately HK$0.7 million respectively, (FY2022:
HK$5.9 million). These capital expenditures were mainly financed by fund
generated from operating activities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s total current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$239.4 million (31 March 2022:
HK$226.4 million) and HK$51.8 million (31 March 2022: HK$55.5 million)
respectively, while the current ratio was approximately 4.6 times (31
March 2022: approximately 4.1 times).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$275.0 million which were financed by total liabilities and total equity of
approximately HK$63.7 million and HK$211.3 million respectively. As at
31 March 2023, the Group had cash and bank balance of approximately
HK$154.0 million (31 March 2022: approximately HK$117.2 million).

The Group gearing ratio was 0.01 times as at 31 March 2023 (31 March
2022: 0.02 times), which was calculated based on the total lease liabilities
and bank borrowings over total equity of the Group.

There was no change to the Company’s capital structure during the year
ended 31 March 2023. As at 31 March 2023, the issued share capital
of the Company was HK$6,000,000 divided into 600,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”)

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 1,647 (31 March 2022: 1,886)
employees. The Group enters into separate employment contracts
with each of the Group’s employees in accordance with the applicable
employment laws in Hong Kong. The remuneration package includes
basic salary, bonuses and other cash allowances or subsidies. The Group
conducts annual review on salaries, bonuses and promotions based
on the performance of each employee. The total staff costs and related
expenses (including directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 March
2023 were approximately HK$283.6 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 3.4% or approximately HK$10.1 million as compared with
approximately HK$293.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2022,

Apart from basic remuneration, share options have been granted under
the pre-IPO share option scheme to recognise the contribution to the
Group by an executive Director and certain employees of the members
of the Group. Further share options may be granted under share option
scheme to attract and retain the best available personnel, provide
additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), as well as
promote the success of the business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE R

In order to provide quality services to customers, the Group provides
ongoing training regularly to relevant staff across different departments
with topics including but not limited to information technology,
environmental protection, ISO training, safety training as well as trainings
for supervisory roles, etc. Such trainings are either provided internally or
by external parties.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the Group generated most of the revenue and incurred most of the
costs in Hong Kong dollars for the year ended 31 March 2023, there was
no significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation and the Group
did not maintain any hedging policy against foreign exchange risk. The
management will consider hedging significant currency exposure should
the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022.

CHARGE OVER GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings of carrying value of
approximately HK$24.2 million as at 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$25.2 million), were pledged to secure the bank loans.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2023, the Group had HK$23.4 million capital

commitments (31 March 2022: nil) in respect of contracted but not
provided for purchase of property, plant and equipment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
March 2023.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any significant investment held as at 31 March
2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Except for the proposed acquisition of office property as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 17 February 2023, the Group did
not have any other plans for material investments or capital assets as of
31 March 2023.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Based on the offer price of HK$0.42 per share, the net proceeds from
the share offer, after deducting listing related expenses, amounted
to approximately HK$40.1 million. The Group will utilise such net
proceeds from the share offer for the purposes set out in the section
headed “Statement of Business Objectives and Use of Proceeds” in the
Prospectus. As at 31 March 2023, the net proceeds had been utilised in
full as intended.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Save for the disclosure in note 35 to the financial statements, there are
no other significant events after the reporting period and up to the date of
this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of good corporate governance
in management and internal procedures so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Part 2 of
Appendix14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance.

Save for the deviation of code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as
described below, the Board considers that, the Company has complied,
to the extent applicable and permissible, with the code provisions as
set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2023 and the
Directors will use their best endeavours to procure the Company to
comply with the CG Code and make disclosure of deviation from such
code in accordance with the Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct for securities transactions
by Directors. The Directors are reminded of their obligations under the
required standard of dealings set out in the Model Code on a regular
basis. The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
March 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, gives
direction and make decisions on the Group’s strategies, policies,
business plan and financial budget and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. In addition, to oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The Board has
delegated to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of the Board committees are
set out in this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised seven members,
including of four executive Directors, and three independent non-
executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan
Mr. Chan Chun Sing

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills appropriate
to the business requirements of the Company. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 37 to 42 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” that Madam Ng Sing Mui is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei
and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, and Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the sister of Mr. Sze Wai
Lun, the Board members do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among themselves.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board at all times met the
requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules of having a
minimum of three independent non-executive Directors (representing
at least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting and related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has renewed the letter of appointment with each of the
independent non-executive Directors for a term of two years commencing
on 16 March 2022 unless terminated by not less than three months
prior written notice served by either party on the other or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment. Each of such
appointments is subject to the rotation and retirement provisions in the
articles of association of the Company.

CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires the responsibilities
between the chairperson and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Company has not appointed a
chief executive officer and the role and functions of chief executive officer
have been performed by all the executive Directors, including Madam
Ng Sing Mui, the chairperson of the Company (the “Chairperson”) and
an executive Director, collectively. The Board considered that this has
the advantages of allowing contributions from all executive Directors
with different expertise and will review the current situation from time to
time and shall make necessary arrangements when the Board considers
appropriate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted on 13 March 2017 a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”), a summary of which is set out as follows:

- The Company is committed to equality of opportunity in all aspects
of its business;

- The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including
skills, regional and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities;

- In forming its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

- The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has
the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and to maximize the Board’s effectiveness; and

- Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised seven Directors,
two of whom are female. The Company targets to avoid a single gender
Board and will timely review the gender diversity of the Board based
on its own business model and specific needs. The Company believes
that the balance of gender in the Board would bring more inspiration
to the Board and enhance the business development of the Group. As
at the date of this annual report, the male to female gender ratio in the
Company’s workforce (including Directors and senior management) is
27:73.

MECHANISM TO ENSURE INDEPENDENT
VIEWS AND INPUTS TO THE BOARD

To ensure that independent views and input are available to the Board,
the following mechanism has been established by the Board:

- Where appropriate, the Company shall arrange suitable and
sufficient resources to cover any matters relating to the obtaining of
an independent opinion by the Board, including but not limited to
the engagement of a legal team or any other professionals for such
purpose;

- Where appropriate, the Directors shall give at least three working
days’ notice to the Company Secretary of the Company to obtain
an independent opinion, including but not limited to engaging a
professional team for such purpose;

- The Board is required to review its structure, size, composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) and diversity policy
at least annually to ensure that the composition of the Board
complies with the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules
including maintaining a balanced mix of executive and non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
so that the Board has a strong element of independence which can
effectively exercise independent judgment; and
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- If all the independent non-executive Directors have served on the
Board for more than nine years, the Company should consider
to appoint a new independent non-executive Director at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Board considers that the said mechanism has been operating
effectively and will continue to monitor the implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanism on an annual basis.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board intends to hold Board meetings regularly at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than 14
days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors
with an opportunity to attend and propose matters to be discussed in the
meeting agenda.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice
will generally be given. The agenda and accompanying documents are
dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members at least 3 days
before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
documents and be adequately prepared for the meetings.

When Directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairperson prior to the
meeting. Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings
will be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by
the Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting
is held.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board held 4 Board meetings
and passed resolutions by way of written resolutions. The attendance
record of each Directors is set out in the table on page 25 of this annual
report.

GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 March 2023, 1 general meeting of the
Company, being the 2022 annual general meeting held on 2 August 2022
(the “2022 AGM”), was held. The attendance record of each Director is
set out in the table on page 25 of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 21 February 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. Currently, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan, Mr.
Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr. Chan Chun Sing with Mr. Chung Koon
Yan being the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review, in draft form, the annual report, interim report and accounts, and
to provide advice and comments to the Board. In this regard, members
of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board, the senior management
and auditor. The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matters that have been raised
by the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer (if any) or auditor. Members of the
Audit Committee are also responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management systems.

The corporate governance functions are also performed by the Audit
Committee. The corporate governance functions are to develop and
review the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance to
comply with the CG Code and make recommendations to the Board, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors, and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2023. The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee
at the above meetings is set out in the table on page 25 of this annual
report. In addition, the Audit Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation of written resolutions during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee had
performed the following works:

- reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the engagement
of the Company’s auditor in respect of perform agree-upon

procedures for the interim results announcement;

- discussed with the Company’s auditor on the audit planning;
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- reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and the related
results announcement, documents and other matters or issues
raised by the Company’s auditor and made recommendation to the
Board the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor;

- discussed and confirmed with the management the effectiveness
of the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems, reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems and made recommendation to the Board;

= review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and

- reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code during
the year ended 31 March 2022 and corporate governance related
matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 and is of the opinion
that such consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules, other applicable legal
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor
Stephen and Mr. Chung Koon Yan and one executive Director, namely
Ms. Sze Tan Nei with Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen being the chairperson
of the Remuneration Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policies and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and to set up a formal and transparent procedure for
determination of such remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under code
provision E.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration packages of the Directors and the members of
senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2023. The attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 25 of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Remuneration Committee
performed the following works:

- discussed and reviewed the existing policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management; and

- made recommendations to the Board on salary adjustment
proposals for the executive Directors and senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises one
executive Director, namely Madam Ng Sing Mui and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr.
Chan Chun Sing with Madam Ng Sing Mui being the chairperson of the
Nomination Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. In assessing the Board
composition, the Nomination Committee will take into account various
aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors,
as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary),
including periodical review of such plans. The appointment of a new
Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision by
the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.
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The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well
as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in
particular, are set out as follows:

(@  participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standards of conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

(c) serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for non-
executive Director) and other relevant Board committees, if invited;

(d)  bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committee on which he or she serves the
benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation in
the Board/committee meetings;

(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

M ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(@ conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation
or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by
the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of
the candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also be
evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
for filling the office of an independent non-executive Director with such
qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.
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The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 March 2023 at which the members of the Nomination Committee
reviewed the Board'’s structure, size, composition and diversity, assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of retiring Directors
at the 2022 AGM. The attendance record of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 25 of this annual
report.

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS, THE
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND
GENERAL MEETING

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and general meeting held during the year ended 31 March
2023 is set out as follows:
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Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Director Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings Meeting
BREZEE RYWZEE HWNEES
Bt Exges & & & RRAE
Executive Directors
WITES
Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) 4/4 N/A 11 N/A 1/1
SRSt (F/E) NEA EA
Ms. Sze Tan Nei 4/4 N/A N/A 2/2 1/1
e £+ TEA EA
Mr. Ang Ming Wah 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
HBEREE S 4 TEHR ENELE TER
Mr. Sze Wai Lun 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
& fm 4 NEA NEA EA
Independent non-executive Directors
BWIFRTES
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen 4/4 3/3 1/1 2/2 11
RIFKFEE
Mr. Chung Koon Yan 4/4 3/3 N/A 2/2 11
BIEALSE NEA
Mr. Chan Chun Sing 4/4 3/3 1/1 N/A 11
BRIk o4 iE A
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. All
Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and have exercised their duties with
care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group. The
Company continuously updates the Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory and statutory
requirements from time to time to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. The Company also
provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh the Directors’
knowledge and skills.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
March 2023 to the Company. Training record of each Director received for
the year ended 31 March 2023 is summarised below:

EENRFEEIIREXEER

EFXFARRERENERRE - 2RESFHUN
BREHAATDRR (TRR) WEME I
EFE - BERLOABMBEMBETREOR
B BIRNAEENER - ARBAFEODE
FRMHARLTRAIKEMAIHERZRE
REEREZRMERB R URFREE
TZERIRMBRESRFEEE DR
BYE A o 2R B) TR AR 1 78 3R e HL Ath 15 51| LA 3%
fR I BT B R R B BE o

FIEESEHE2ARERELERBAAR
RSN E2023F3831HILEEERS
ZIEHIERER c B E2023FE3831HILEFES
LEEMESEIIZESMIAT

Name of Director Type of Training
EEl4 1EesEE
Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) REMZ T (FE) B
Ms. Sze Tan Nei M e+ B
Mr. Ang Ming Wah HBREESL L B
Mr. Sze Wai Lun IfEfmTE B
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RIFRTE B
Mr. Chung Koon Yan BB B
Mr. Chan Chun Sing FRIRE S B
Notes: e

A attending seminars and/or conference and/or forums on subjects relating to A HEFTEAEHEEREREEERZHATE

directors’ duties and corporate governance B/ g%k REME

B reading newspaper, journals and updates as regards legal and regulatory B HERMZEREEENEERITHEER

changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 by band is set out below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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EFRhESHREEREBF

B ZE2023FE3A3IHLEEE KR EHhE
BE (BEESE NFHWiesmNEE S W
T

Remuneration Band

#HENEEE

Number of individual

A

Nil

HK$1 to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000

= —
1870 E 1,000,000 7T 5
1,000,001 75 % 1,500,000 75 1
1,500,001 75 2,000,000/ 7T 1
2,000,001 77T £ 2,500,000/ 7T -

2,500,001 77T 23,000,000/ 7T -
3,000,001 75 E3,500,0007 7T 1
3,500,001 7T E 4,000,000/ 7T -
4,000,001 77T E 4,500,000/ 7T 1

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company adopted its shareholders communication policy
(“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) on 13 March 2017 with the
objective of providing the Shareholders with information about the
Company and enabling them to engage actively with the Company and
exercise their rights as Shareholders in an informed manner.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual general
meetings and other general meetings that may be convened, as well
as by making available all the (i) corporate communication documents
including, but not limited to, copy of annual reports, interim reports,
notices of meeting, circulars, proxy forms (“Corporate Communication”);
(i) other documents issued by the Company which are published on the
website of the Stock Exchange for the information or action of holders of
any of its securities; (i) constitutional documents of the Company and the
Board committees, (iv) corporate information including list of Directors;
and (v) other Corporate Communication including the procedures
Shareholders can use to propose a person for election as a Director
on the Company’s website. Corporate Communication will be provided
to the Shareholders in plain language and in both English and Chinese
versions to facilitate the Shareholders’ understanding.
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Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings. Appropriate arrangements for the
annual general mestings shall be in place to encourage Shareholders’
participation. Board members, in particular, either the chairman of Board
committees or their delegates, appropriate management executives
and external auditors will attend annual general meetings to answer
Shareholders’ questions. Shareholders are encouraged to provide,
amongst other things, in particular, their email addresses to the Company
in order to facilitate timely and effective communications. The Company
recognises the importance of Shareholders’ privacy and will not disclose
Shareholders’ information without their consent, unless required by law to
do so.

In view of the above, the Board considered that the Shareholders
Communication Policy had been effectively implemented during the year
ended 31 March 2023.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by Shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general
meeting.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions allowing Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at the general meetings under the articles
of association of the Company or the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands, as amended, modified and supplemented. Shareholders may
follow the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for any business specified in such written requisition. The written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by
the relevant Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of business
at Unit 01-02, 9/F., The Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company by post
to Unit 01-02, 9/F., The Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong, or via email at the contact information as provided
on the website of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has made
amendments to its memorandum of association and the articles of
association to align with the latest legal and regulatory requirements,
including the applicable laws of the Cayman lIslands and the
amendments made to Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules which took effect
on 1 January 2022 by way of adoption of the amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association by a special resolution passed
by the Shareholders at the 2022 AGM. The amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company is available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and oversees such systems on an ongoing
basis, while ensuring a review of the effectiveness of these systems of the
Group is conducted at least annually. The scope of such review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are designed
to managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities)
of risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, and
management has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee and
the Board on the effectiveness of these systems for the year ended 31
March 2023.

Main Features of the Risk Management System

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for
the long-term and sustainable growth of a business. The Group’s risk
management structure and the major responsibilities of each role of the
structure are summarized below:

Audit Committee

BIZEEE

Management
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[ % B 1 K A BB B

EEEHAREERABEER
MEEE

EFgRNEGEEREERANBEZERR
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R ERRARNEERR
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Risk Owners

ER =N

Role Major Responsibilities At FTEBSE

Board - determines the business strategies and objectives ZEEE — BEAEBRCERRIKHA
of the Group, and evaluates and determines the BiE R G B EARE
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in EAERKKBEEMER

achieving the Group’s strategic objectives;

- oversees management in the design, implement
and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems;

S oversees the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis and
ensures the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems;
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Role

Major Responsibilities

FERE

Audit
Committee

Management

reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems at least
annually, and such review should cover all material
controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls;

reviews the emerging risks of the Group annually,
and the risk management and the internal controls
in place to address those risks;

discusses the risk management and internal
control systems with management of the Group
to ensure that the management of the Group has
performed its duty to have an effective system.
The discussion should include the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function and to
rectify any weaknesses that may be revealed from
time to time;

considers major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and the Group’s management’s response to these
findings;

designs, implements and ongoing assesses the
Group’s risk management and internal control
systems;

gives prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on risk management and internal control
matters as delegated by the Board, on Audit
Committee’s initiative or raised by the external
consultant(s);

provides confirmation to the Board and the
Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems;
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Role Major Responsibilities At FTEBSE
Risk Owners -  ultimately accountable for ensuring the risk is EREBEA — ERKESHREAREIE
managed appropriately; and EEE &M

= responsible for, or oversight of, activities to
manage each identified risk.

In addition, the Company engaged an external consultant to conduct a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Main Features of the Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The components of the framework are shown as
follow:

Control - a set of standards, processes and structures
Environment that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

Risk Assessment a dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how

risks should be managed.

Control Activities — actions established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives
are carried out.

Information and internal and external communication to provide
Communication the Group with the information needed to carry
out day-to-day controls.

Monitoring - ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is
present and functioning.
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Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

Identification — identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

Evaluation — analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management = consider the risk responses, ensure effective

communication with the Board in respect of the
risks and on-going monitor the residual risks.

Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are submitted
to the Audit Committee and the Board annually. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, had performed a review on the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including,
but not limited to, () the changes, in the nature and extent of significant
risks and the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business
and the external environment, (i) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems, (i) the
extent and frequency of communication of monitoring results to the
Audit Committee and the Board which enables them to assess control of
the Company and the effectiveness of risk management, (iv) significant
control failings or weaknesses that have been identified, and (v) the
effectiveness of the Company’s processes for financial reporting and
Listing Rules compliance, and considered that the risk management
and internal control systems were effective and adequate for the year
ended 31 March 2023. No significant areas of concern that might affect
the financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group were identified. The scope of such review covers
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions and their attitude
against internal control of the Group. The Board will continue to work with
the management to discuss and follow-up on the status of remediation of
the internal control weaknesses and to monitor the risks of the Group in
the coming years.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling
and Dissemination of Inside Information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an inside
information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have
been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

- access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.

- transmission of inside information in electronic form should be
password-protected.

- prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area.

- code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any
reference to them would not be linked to the projects themselves to
minimize possibilities of unintentional leakage.

- trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with
reasonable care.

- confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

- officers and employees other than the designated representative
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, as opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate
internal audit department, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit department.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1”), to provide
compliance and full range of company secretarial services to the Group
in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing regulatory
environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Mr. Tse Kam Fai (“Mr. Tse”), the representative of Uni-1, has been
appointed as the company secretary with effect from 1 October 2022.
His primary corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Sze Tan
Nei, an executive Director.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, Mr. Tse has undertaken not less than

15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the total fees in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company,
are set out as follows:

1% B BT A =

B E2023FE3H31HIEEFEE » LA QB ZH
S B EESEHMERAERATIRM
MWERIEETIRBE ZEEREYWT ¢

Services rendered

Fee paid/ payable

PR #5458 R! et EHER
HK$ 000
FHET
Audit services: BETERTS
— Annual audit for the year ended 31 March 2023 — B E2023F3H31HILEE > FE Rt 600
Non-audit services: JEBE RS -
— Perform agreed-upon procedures for interim results — FLERHA B N SHITIHERF
announcement 80
— Other services — HAMRH 300
Total #aEt 980

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements of the Group and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and the Company’s management will provide
information and explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company in respect of its reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023 is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages
67 to 72 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Ng Sing Mui (2 E2#8) (‘Madam Ng"), aged 62, a co-founder of
the Group, has been a Director since 31 May 2016. Madam Ng was re-
designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is currently
acting as the Chairperson. She is also the chairperson of the Nomination
Committee and holds directorships in all subsidiaries of the Company.
Madam Ng is primarily responsible for the strategic planning, operation
planning and overall management of the Group.

Madam Ng has more than 30 years of experience in the environmental
hygiene services industry in Hong Kong. Building the business from the
ground up since December 1983, Madam Ng has held a leadership role
in the overall management and business development of the Group.

Madam Ng has been a certified associate fellow of the Institute of
Managers and Leaders Australia and New Zealand (formerly known as
Australian Institute of Management) since September 1995 and has
become a fellow member since June 2019. She was also awarded a
Training Certificate on Fire Prevention (Commercial Sector) issued by the
Occupational Safety & Health Council in August 2001.

Madam Ng is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun,
both are executive Directors. She is the sole director of Rich Cheer
Development Limited and Sze’s Holdings Limited, both companies have
disclosable interests in the Shares under the provisions in Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”). Madam Ng is also the sole shareholder
of Rich Cheer Development Limited.
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Ms. Sze Tan Nei (Fif3E) (‘Ms. Sze"), aged 43, joined the Group in
February 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016.
Ms. Sze was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February
2017. She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and holds
directorships in several subsidiaries of the Company. She is primarily
responsible for strategic planning, operation planning and compliance
control of the Group’s business operation.

Ms. Sze graduated from Queensland University of Technology,
Australia, with a Bachelor of Business (Management) in October 2004.
She completed the Pest Control and Pesticide Safety for Industrial
Undertakings course organised by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2008. Ms. Sze was certified as a Quality Management Systems Auditor
by the International Register of Certificated Auditors, by completing the
Lead Auditor Training Course (in accordance to international standards
ISO 9001:2008 & ISO 19011:2002) co-organised by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency and International Management Systems
Associates Limited in October 2009. She has also completed the
Environmental Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training
Course for ISO 14001:2004 & ISO 19011:2002 in January 2010, and
the Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems Auditor/Lead
Auditor Training Course for BS OHSAS 18001:2007 & ISO 19011:2002 in
April 2011. In July 2017, she has completed the Intensive ISO 9001:2015
QMS and ISO 14001:2015 EMS Internal Auditor Training organised
by SGS Hong Kong Limited. Ms. Sze has awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety
Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training Course issued by
SGS United Kingdom Ltd. in September 2019. She was also accredited
as a certified ESG Planner by International Chamber of Sustainable
Development in April 2023.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sze was employed as property
management assistant in April 2005 by Jones Lang LaSalle Management
Services Ltd, being a company engaging in the provision of services
specialising in real estates. She was subsequently promoted to the
position of assistant management surveyor in March 2006 and remained
in that position until she left such company in August 2006. In August
2006, she was employed as a marketing assistant in the communications
department of Hongkong Land Group Limited, being a company
engaging in property investment, management and development until
February 2007.

Ms. Sze is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and
an executive Director, and the sister of Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an executive
Director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ang Ming Wah (GEBRZE) (“Mr. Ang”), aged 67, joined the Group in
March 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Mr. Ang
was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is
primarily responsible for the business development and planning, control
and management of the Group’s business operation.

Mr. Ang graduated from the University of Waterloo, Canada, with a
Bachelor of Mathematics in October 1978, and Bachelor of Arts in
October 1979. He also completed an executive program organised
by the Business School of the University of Michigan in 1997. Mr. Ang
was admitted as an associate member of the Hong Kong Management
Association in 1986 and was appointed as an “Occupational Safety and
Health Ambassador” by the Occupational Safety & Health Council in
2008.

Mr. Ang has over 30 years of experience in the environmental hygiene
services industry in Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ang was
employed by Reliance Services Company Limited (currently known as
ISS Facility Services Limited), being a company engaging in the provision
of environmental hygiene related services, as operations manager in May
1986. He was subsequently promoted to senior operations manager in
October 1988. Mr. Ang left such company in February 2000 and his last
position held was director in operation department. Mr. Ang subsequently
joined Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd. (currently known as Best
Result Environmental Services Limited), being a company engaging in the
provision of cleaning services, as general manager in July 2000 and was
appointed as director and general manager in 2004. He held that position
until he left such company in September 2006.

Mr. Sze Wai Lun (BEfE®&) (‘Mr. Sze”), aged 40, joined the Group in
September 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Mr.
Sze was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017. He
is primarily responsible for the overall management of IT development of
the Group.

Mr. Sze graduated from Giriffith University, Australia, with a Bachelor
of Commerce in December 2006, and a Diploma of Commerce from
Queensland Institute of Business and Technology (currently known
as Griffith College), Australia, in February 2003. He has also obtained
a Diploma in SME Company Operation & Management from Hong
Kong Productivity Council in September 2014, a Certificate of Data
Centre Operation and Maintenance Engineers Course from Hong
Kong Productivity Council in February 2015 and a Certificate of CGEIT
(Certified in the Governance of Enterprise IT) from Hong Kong Productivity
Council in May 2015. Mr. Sze has been admitted as a member of ISACA
(Information Systems Audit and Control Association) since February
2021.
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Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sze was employed by Citicorp International
Limited, being a company which provides banking and financial services
as a securities operations professional in the securities operations
department of the operations and technology group in April 2007. He
held that position until he left such company in August 2007.

Mr. Sze is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and an
executive Director, and the brother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive
Director.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (RiF) (Chinese alias: RIFE),
M.H. (“Mr. Yuen”) aged 75, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on the Group’s strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct. He is also the chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yuen graduated with a Master of Science in Interdisciplinary Design
and Management from The University of Hong Kong in November 2013.
He is an Eminent fellow member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, fellow member of Chartered Institute of Housing, fellow
member of the HK Institute of Housing and a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. He has more than 50 years of real estate
experience from both public and private sectors.

Mr. Yuen was the ex-chairman of the Industry Training Advisory
Committee (property management) of the Education Bureau, past
chairman of the Real Estate Service Training Board, ex-committee
member of the Employee Retraining Board, ex-member of the Land and
Building Advisory Committee, past chairman of the Chartered Institute of
Housing (HK branch), past president of the HK Association of Property
Management Companies and past president of the HK Institute of Real
Estate Administrators. Mr. Yuen has retired from the office of executive
director of a real estate investment fund and has been appointed as its
non-executive chairman since June 2017.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yuen was an independent non-executive director of Li Bao Ge
Group Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1869) from January 2020 to April 2022, an
independent non-executive director of Janco Holdings Limited (whose
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8035) from
May 2021 to April 2022, and an independent non-executive director of
Real Nutriceutical Group Limited (whose shares were previously listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and delisted on 25 January 2021,
stock code: 2010) from January 2019 to January 2021.

Mr. Chung Koon Yan ((21E &) (‘Mr. Chung”), aged 59, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017 and
is responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group’s
strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct. He is also the
chairperson of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Chung graduated with a Master of Professional Accounting from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Hong Kong in November 2000.
He is a practicing member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Chung is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since February 2007 and November
2014 respectively. He is also a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Chung is currently a director of Chiu, Choy & Chung CPA Ltd. and
has more than 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Unity
Group Holdings International Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1539) and an independent
non-executive director of Great World Company Holdings Limited (whose
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8003).
From November 2013 to June 2021, Mr. Chung was an independent
non-executive director of Asian Citrus Holdings Limited (whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 73 and
were admitted to trading on AIM (a market operated by the London Stock
Exchange) in 2005 but which have been cancelled from trading on AlM
since 29 March 2017).
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Mr. Chan Chun Sing (BRIRE) (‘Mr. Chan”), aged 43, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is
responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group’s strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct. He is also a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chan has over 22 years of experience in the fields of accounting
and auditing matters of listed companies in Hong Kong. He obtained
a bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2001. In November 2015, Mr. Chan obtained an
executive master of business administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors since March 2013. He is also an associate
member of both the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the
Chartered Governance Institute since June 2021. Mr. Chan worked for
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September 2001 to July 2011 and his
last position held was senior manager in the audit department.

Mr. Chan was the chief financial officer of Lap Kei Engineering (Holdings)
Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1690) from February 2015 to December 2020
and has been the company secretary of such company since January
2018. He was an independent non-executive director of Lai Si Enterprise
Holding Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2266) from January 2017 to February 2022. Mr.
Chan served as an executive director of Janco Holdings Limited (whose
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8035) from
October 2019 to December 2020 and served as its company secretary
from October 2019 to May 2021. Mr. Chan joined a private company as
chief financial officer from July 2013 to February 2014 and was appointed
as executive director from March 2014 to April 2015 and was designated
as non-executive director from May 2015 to March 2017. He has also
been a director of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited since
November 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Chi Kong (GRERI) (“Mr. Leung”), aged 61, is the assistant
general manager of the Group (operation). He is primarily responsible
for the overall management of sites operations of the Group. Mr. Leung
has over 35 years of experiences in the environmental hygiene services
industry in Hong Kong. He was employed by Reliance Services Company
Limited (currently known as ISS Facility Services Limited), being a
company engaging in the provision of environmental hygiene related
services, as an assistant foreman. He left such company in February
2001 and the last position held was site manager. Mr. Leung then joined
Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd. (currently known as Best Result
Environmental Services Limited), being a company engaging in the
provision of cleaning services, where he worked as assistant operations
manager in February 2001 and was subsequently promoted to operation
manager in October 2004, where he held such position until he left
the company in September 2006 and joined the Group in February
2007. Mr. Leung has obtained a Certificate Programme on Supervisory
Management from The Hong Kong Management Association in March
2000 and he was awarded a Training Certificate on Safety for Cleansing
Work (managers and supervisors) by the Occupational Safety & Health
Council in December 2009. Mr. Leung also obtained an Aluminum Mobile
Working Platform Training Certificate issued by Origin Production Limited
trading as The Hong Kong Safety Training Association in July 2004 and
held a Construction Industry Safety Training Certificate from June 2004 to
June 2007.

Mr. Chow Kai Chi (/8 EXE) (“Mr. Chow”), aged 54, is the senior finance
manager of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the financial
reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control matters of the
Group. Mr. Chow obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Business Accounting
in September 1999 from the University of Lincolnshire & Humberside
(currently known as the University of Lincoln), the United Kingdom by long
distance learning. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and was admitted as a member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in October 2001.

EFEhERERE

REIEE

RZEBFRE (TREE)) 615 AEEBIE
MR (BE) BIEaEAEEMBEE
NERERE RAEENBEBRIZEBERSET
EBERBFELRE - RERENREARBE
FE/A T (RFBISS Facility Services Limited > %
WERBIRIFHEBRRFEH AR BN
BET EN2001F28 BZ AR BER > HE
BHAARHLE 2 BRI ER20014F2
BMAEBRBEZRFERAT CRBIERIR
BRBERLE ARBEEFRRBOA
3)) EEBEELE ) HE1120045F108
BEAAEESET —BRAZBEE20065F
OB B A BB - L2007 F2B MA K&
B o RAETN2000F3ABEEEEEEER
G B EIEEE 22 (Certificate Programme
on Supervisory Management) > il j220095
12AEBEZZRERETERIFE (K12
KREEE) Z21Ei/I5EZ(Training Certificate
on Safety for Cleansing Work (managers and
supervisors)) e 2L E TR 2004 F7 B E VS S
(FE) BR2E (UBEEZ2BIEKE)
NEE IR e B E TIETEEIIFEZ(Aluminum
Mobile Working Platform Training Certificate)
TR 2004FE68 £E2007E6 BB EEITE
Z 2123155 Z(Construction Industry Safety
Training Certificate) °

i}
4

BRExRE (BEE)) b AERESR
FHERB - FITEEEAEETBRE M
BRE ER HHEZEET - BEER1999
FoREBREB BT A B HEBHUniversity
of Lincolnshire & Humberside BRI 5 A2
(University of Lincoln)) E8m¥gst X212
o FRATBEHMATEEWLHN20015F
10BN A EBEST ARG AMATZE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
2023 FE R

43



44

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESMEREERE

Mr. Chow has over 30 years of experience in accounting and finance
industry in Hong Kong. He was employed as a clerk in the finance
department by Nanyang Brothers Tobacco Co., Ltd, a tobacco
manufacturer in June 1988. He was promoted to senior clerk in January
1991 and held that position until he left in August 1991. Mr. Chow then
joined Yue Po Engineering Co., Ltd, being a company that provides
kitchen design services and supplies catering equipment as senior clerk
in the accounting department in March 1992 and was promoted to
account officer in October 1992, in which position he remained until he
left such company in March 1995. He then joined Siu Wor Trading Co.
Ltd, being a company engaging in jewellery trading related business as
an accountant in April 1995 and left the company in January 1998. Mr.
Chow subsequently joined Trans Asia Computer Superstore Ltd., being
a company engaging in sales of computer related equipment as an
accountant from June 1998 to August 1999. He then worked as a senior
accountant in Hung Mau Realty & Construction Ltd, being a company
engaging in the provision of general construction works from November
1999 to July 2002. From July 2002 to April 2005, Mr. Chow worked as
an accountant at Broadway Photo Supply Ltd, then being an exporter of
camera and photographic equipment. He then worked as an accountant
in Suga Electronics Limited, being a company providing advanced
electronics manufacturing services, from May 2005 to August 2005 and
joined the Group in November 2005.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business of the Group is provision of environmental hygiene
and related services and airline catering support services in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular under the following separate sections:

(@) review of the Company’s business and financial position, and
development and future prospects of the Company’s business
are shown in the “Chairperson’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report;

(b)  the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are shown in
the section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” below;

(c) the Group’s environmental policies and performance are shown
in the section headed “Environmental Policies and Performance”
below;

(d) the Group’s key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers are shown in the section headed “Relationships with Key
Stakeholders” below;

(e) the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
are shown in the section headed “Compliance with Laws and
Regulations” below; and

® details of key performance indicators are shown in the “Financial
Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

No significant events that have an effect on the Group subsequent to the
year ended 31 March 2023.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly or
indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The risk factors set out
below are those that could result in the Group’s businesses, financial
conditions, results of operations or growth prospects differing materially
from expected or historical results. Such factors are by no means
exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be other risks in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Strategic Risks

An occurrence of a natural disaster, widespread health epidemic or other
outbreaks could have a material adverse impact on the Group’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

The Group is principally engaged in environmental hygiene and related
services, and airline catering support services in Hong Kong which
constitute one of the significant sources of revenue for the Group.

In late 2022, the airline operations started resuming to normal after the
COVID-19 pandemic and the commercial flights increased; hence, the
demand of airline catering support services has also been resumed
gradually. Since certain labour force has switched to other industries
during the time of pandemic, the Group may foresee encountering the
problem of labour shortage, especially in the coming summer 2023.
Eventually, the Group may suffer from the pressure of expensive labour
cost. If the Group is unable to control the cost increment properly, it may
pose a challenge to the Group’s profitability.

To minimize the impact, the Group has implemented various measures,
including recruiting more suitable workers to ensure an adequate
manpower to perform its duties, providing training to new staff so as to
meet the requirements of the client’s operations, closely monitoring the
labour expense and switching the increment of labour cost to clients.

Operational Risks

Tendering is the major way to engage a service provider in the cleaning
service industry for both private and public sector. A majority of the
Group’s service contracts are under tendering which have fixed service
terms that range from one to three years, contributing significant amount
of the Group’s revenue. Since the tendering process is very competitive, it
is uncertain that whether the customer will award new contracts or renew
the existing contracts with the Group. If some customers reduce the
volume of service or terminates its business relationship with the Group,
the financial results and profitability may be negatively impacted.
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Currently, most of the clients are large-scaled corporations which look for
experienced service provider with good track record. The small service
providers in the market may not be able to fulfill the strict requirement of
those large-scaled clients. There was no major contract loss during the
past year.

The management understands that the clients are not obligated in any
way to award or renew the service contracts with the Group. To response
to the risk, the Group has established a relatively broad customer base
ranging from government department in Hong Kong, subsidiaries of
multi-national companies to tenants of various premises. Besides, the
Group has established strong reputation through maintaining consistent
and quality service to its customers. A designated customer service team
is responsible for enhancing client’'s communication and handling the
feedback of clients.

Apart from maintaining good relationship with existing customers,
the Group will continue explore new business opportunities including
expansion in hotel-related synergised services to expand the source
of revenue. Meanwhile, the Group will integrate opportunities with the
existing business to create value for customers, such as extending the
service package of customer from general cleaning services to other
environmental hygiene and support services. Given the good reputation
in the industry, the Group would be able to establish new business
relationship with other customers.

On the other hand, the Group operates in labour-intensive industry which
provides the hygiene services to client including garbage collection,
disposal, and cleanliness of the workplace. Thus, manpower plays
an essential role to the environmental hygiene service, which is highly
dependent on both quantity and quality of labor.

However, owing to the condition of unpleasant working environment and
keen demand of the labor market, the competitors may offer an incentive
benefit to attract the skilled labor. Thus, some of the labor may switch the
career field directly.

As a result, the shortage of capable labor can have far-reaching impacts
on business operation. If the Group is unable to address the labor
shortage and retain sufficient manpower, the quality of service and
operation efficiency may be adversely influenced which may slow down
the Group’s growth.

In order to mitigate the aforementioned risk, the Group has taken the
following measures:

S Performing the salary review by benchmarking the market rate and
the scale of hourly rate;

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFOHRS

BA REBEINERRBAERE  IKRER
CEHTECBREFNKRGHER -HIH L
P/ NERFBHEE e EmERFREE
FHBRSER-BEN—FRIEETEGL
ERe

EEEERERAIEAAZF R THESX
EREERT AN -RERZAR A&E
ERUBHEZNERE BEEBBUTH
FINBEARNWE AR U AEYENE
Feltih - BREFAERETFREEEH R
BERG SEECHRBRENBE-EM
WEARGEGEERAZTRBEEMNGER
P&

FREARFRERIFAEN RERR#
BERRABI AN > SRR RIS A8 R 9 R AR
BoUBBAW@R R R AEBRES
REXGNRE REFAEEE AIUF
ERNBRBEEH —RFERBEAEHM
BREEERSIERG ERTTEANREE
B AEEREHREMEP ZIUMPNES
B % o

S—HE AEEREAZRREHELERS
NESHTERTE BFENURKE - BEER
ITHRBABER BLb ANERREHERS
TEEEREZENFER MREFERTS
ERBSEINBERER-

AT HRAEFENTFRIE RS THIHHN
REOIFN RFHF A G RHEBBIER
MR SIS T HIb B 0% TR EE
ERERmERE-

Hit BEINS INEREHEXHEEE
EREFE HMAEEEEBARE LIEGRE
BREBTRHANAT RBERREENE
BREERATHEE EMERETEENE
o

7R B R R > A B S EREUL T

B 2 B T 15 0 K B /)N B B K i
i

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
2023 FE R

47



48

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFOHRS

- Offering competitive remuneration packages with fringe benefits
which are comparable with other rivals in order to attract and retain
competent employees;

- Recruiting staff through a variety of channels, such as online
advertisements, newspaper advertisements, social media
advertisements, and employee referral, in order to enhance greater
exposure to the potential candidates to recruit suitable employees
timely;

S Setting key performance indicator to monitor the staff performance
and service quality. The staff with satisfactory performance will be
offered with salary increment and promotion accordingly;

- Analyzing the personnel data and ratio of deployment among full
time staff, part time staff and subcontracting staff. Such valuable
information can be utilized to suggest appropriate measures to
resources allocation;

- Organizing staff gatherings, festival celebration parties to enhance
staff loyalty;

S Conducting weekly meeting with middle management and
supervisors to raise the awareness of recent regulatory changes
and resolve the daily difficulties so as to maintain a positive
workplace environment;

S Reviewing leave arrangement which can provide more flexibility for
staff; and

- Providing extensive training for the employee in order to maintain a
high quality service and make up for the shortage in skilled workers.
Managers are responsible for coaching junior staff.

Compliance Risks

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
insurance coverage of the Group may not adequately protect it against
certain risks.

Through close monitoring of various legal and regulatory pronouncements
from the government by its legal and compliance personnel, the Group
is able to keep itself updated with various regulatory requirements and
complies with local labour laws and regulations such as the Employment
Ordinance and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance. A comprehensive
work safety management and supervision system is also established for
enhancing safety performance. In addition, the management will review
the insurance coverage on an ongoing basis.
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Financial Risks

Please also refer to note 31 to the financial statements for the financial
risks facing by the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Company treats human resources as the Group’s valuable assets.
Training and retaining good employees are always at top priorities.

Besides on-the-job trainings and funding for continuous learning, two
committees are set up to ensure good physical and psychological health
of our staffs. Workshops are held regularly to raise staff's awareness
of occupational health and safety. The risk-free working environment
is guaranteed by the certification of OHSAS 18001 Occupational
Health and Safety Management System. In addition, the Company also
organizes a range of recreational activities so as to foster team spirit.

Customers

Keeping strong relationship with the customers is critical to maintain the
competitiveness of the Group.

For servicing industry with human as the main concern, it is vital to have
an independent, comprehensive quality assurance mechanism in order to
maintain high level of service, in which rule-of-man style and subjectivity
in the old days can be eliminated. In view of this, the Company has
established an evaluation mechanism with mutual assessment by internal
and external teams of professionals audits. In order to achieve a set
standard of service and customers’ satisfaction, the work is monitored
and reviewed in various aspects including provision of resources, training,
infrastructure and working environment, with customers’ expectation as
the foundation. For services that are not up to high standard, remedial
action will be advised and implemented with continuous improvement
follow through. Also, preventive measure will be formulated as future
guidelines.

Suppliers and Sub-contractors

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers and sub-contractors
which are selected with reference to, among other things, material/service
quality, reliability and price. The Group performs annual evaluation on the
Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors with respect to raw materials/
service quality, reliability and timely delivery.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has been putting unremitting efforts in environmental
protection by introducing sustainable machineries, devices and
equipment for operation.

The Group maintains close collaborations with green groups and
chambers of commerce to promote the concept of sustainable
development. The Group’s determination is marked by the ISO 14001
Environmental Management System accreditation obtained in 2001.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board was unaware of any non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published financial results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023, together with
the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
four years ended 31 March 2022, is set out on page 148 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the state
of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 73 to 77 of this annual report.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK1.650 cents
(2022: HK1.473 cents) per Share for the year ended 31 March 2023,
amounting to a total of HK$9,900,000. The proposed final dividend is
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Wednesday, 2 August 2023 (the “2023
AGM”) and is expected to be payable on or about Monday, 28 August
2023.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2023 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 28 July
2023 to Wednesday, 2 August 2023, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2023 AGM, all transfers of Shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 27 July
2028.

For determining the entittement of the Shareholders to the aforesaid
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Tuesday, 8 August 2023 to Thursday, 10 August 2023,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfers of Shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, which is
subject to approval of the Shareholders at the 2023 AGM, all transfers of
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 7 August 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$6,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary Shares was
600,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

There was no movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 March 2023.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 75 of this annual report and note
25 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
the Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$59.0 million.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to
allow Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider various
factors including but not limited to the Group’s overall results of operation,
financial condition, working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements, liquidity position, future expansion plans, general
economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group. Any declaration
and payment as well as the amount of the dividends will be subject
to any restrictions under the applicable laws and regulations and the
Company’s constitutional documents. The Company does not have any
predetermined dividend distribution proportion or distribution ratio. Any
future declarations of dividends may or may not reflect the Company’s
historical declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion
of the Directors.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/
or cancel the dividend policy at any time, and the dividend policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan
Mr. Chan Chun Sing

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, Madam Ng Sing
Mui, Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Ang Ming Wah shall retire from office
as Directors by rotation at the 2023 AGM and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the 2023 AGM.

The Company has renewed the service contract with each of the
executive Directors for a term of three years commencing on 16 March
2023 unless terminated by not less than three months prior written notice
served by either party on the other or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of the service contract. The Company has also renewed the letter
of appointment with each of the independent non-executive Directors for
a term of two years commencing on 16 March 2022 unless terminated
by not less than three months prior written notice served by either party
on the other or otherwise in accordance with the terms of the letter
of appointment. Each of such appointments is subject to the rotation
and retirement provisions in the articles of association of the Company.
Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meetings of the Company pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company.
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Each of Madam Ng Sing Mui, Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Ang Ming Wah,
being the Director proposed for re-election at the 2023 AGM, does not
have service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 37 to 44 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined under
paragraph 15 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is or was a party, and in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director, or the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, is or was materially interested, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at 31 March 2023 or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed at 31 March 2023 or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2023.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of
this annual report was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices; provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter
in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said
persons.

Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2023
and up to the date of this annual report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) being
in force for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company
(if made by the Company).

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements. The Remuneration Committee will review and recommend
the Board the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors
and senior management with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities, contribution, and time devoted to the Group and the
overall performance of the Group.

The Directors and senior management may also be granted options
under the share option scheme of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed on 21
February 2017, the principal terms of the pre-IPO share option scheme
(the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were approved and adopted. The
purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to aid the Company in
retaining key and senior employee of the Group. Principal terms of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were set out in the Prospectus and note
26 to the financial statements. An aggregate of 192,000 share options at
an exercise price of HK$0.42 per Share, being the offer price under the
Share Offer, were granted on 23 February 2017 to an executive Director
and certain employees of the Group. No further options will be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

fEhie st &8l

BRoRAEEmNERESE

R —RER2017F2H821 A EBNEER
ARER - BR LAHEEFERESSE (BX
NEABERBRESE)) WEZRARSER
ERFEM B RAREEFBRESEER
ENAANFBREAERANTIERSRES
BRAREERBRESENEZTEREN
BRERE R HERFM 26 53£192,000
MERITEE.428T BIRHEBEEETZ
BEE 2EBREER2017FE28238EF
—BHTEERAEEBETEE -HFER
BEER A AHEERERESIE— ST RERE
P& #E o

RBEE R ARSI BRETEIRE 2B
BT

Number of Shares (Note 1)

RIVEE (fizE1)
Outstanding Exercise
Outstanding  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed as at Price
Category of as at 1 April during during during 31 March per Share
participants 2022 the year the year the year 2023 Option Exercisable Period
120225 20235 =3
4818 RERN RER RER 3R31H fRRgHE
2EEER K17 Ef7 g % K17 I8 f7fEHA
Director
EZ
Ang Ming Wah 64,000 - - = 64,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
(Note 2)
AR 64,000 = = = 64,000 04287 2017E3816AE202743815R
(M$5E2)
Sub-total 64,000 - - - 64,000
gt 64,000 = = - 64,000
3 Employees in 80,000 - - - 80,000 HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
aggregate (Note 2)
Bi3ESR 80,000 = = = 80,000  042%7 2017F3816HZE2027E3515H
(MIEE2)
1 Employee 24,000 - - (24,000 - HK$0.42 16 March 2017 to
30 November 2022 (Note 3)
1%ES 24,000 = = (24,000) = 0.4287T 2017E3R16HE
2022118300 (MF5E3)
Sub-total 104,000 - - (24,000) 80,000
gt 104,000 = = (24,000) 80,000
Total 168,000 - - (24,000 144,000
st 168,000 = = (24,000) 144,000
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Notes:

Number of Shares over which options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable.

All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may only
exercise their options in the following manner:
(@) 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the period from 16

March 2017 to 15 March 2027; and

(b) the remaining 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the
period from 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027.

In accordance with the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the relevant
options of such employee lapsed on the date of his resignation.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved by a resolution of the sole Shareholder
passed on 21 February 2017. No options under the Share Option
Scheme has been granted since its adoption.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as
follow:

(@)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers
substantial shareholders, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group and to promote the success of the business of the Group.

Participant of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant, adviser, substantial shareholder, distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider of
the Group, options to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance
with paragraph (c) below for such number of Shares as it may
determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.
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() Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (jii) the nominal value of Share

on the date of grant of the option.

(d) Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on

acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

() Maximum number of Shares of the Company available for
issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 60,000,000 Shares, represent 10% of the Shares

in issue as at the date of this annual report.

() Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up

to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

(g9 Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of

grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

(h) Vesting period of option

The Board may in its absolute discretion set a minimum period for
which an option must be held before an option can be exercised.

() Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
ten years commencing on 21 February 2017, subject to early

termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2023, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

() Long position in the Shares
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Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage
shares held/ of interest in
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest interested in the Company
Fi¥s BB
EmRRn, .  EEAREES
B 81 #E=mtE MRk H B B4 BE 2L
Ng Sing Mui Interest of a controlled corporation; 432,000,000 72%
Settlor of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
L YA ] REEEER ; 2REEMESEA (1) 432,000,000 72%
Sze Tan Nei Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 432,000,000 72%
PR REFERTA (TEE2) 432,000,000 72%
Sze Wai Lun Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 3) 432,000,000 72%
kR 2RETEZmA (IEE3) 432,000,000 72%
Ang Ming Wah Beneficial owner (Note 4) 64,000 0.01%
HBREE BmEB A (i5E4) 64,000 0.01%
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(I) Long position in the ordinary shares of
associated corporations

() REBZEESRKRINETE

Number of
Name of associated shares held/ Percentage
Name of Directors corporation Capacity/nature of interest interested in of interest
Fr¥s/ R
g g
BRiL M EE BT B/ HEtE R EE Bt
Ng Sing Mui Sze's Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation; 1 100%
Settlor of a discretionary trust
Vi IEEERERAR RELERT ; REETEVE 1 100%
FEEA
Rich Cheer Development Limited ~ Beneficial owner 1 100%
EIRERERAR BmEA A 1 100%
Sze Tan Nei Sze's Holdings Limited Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
T FHE IEEERERAR SREEZEA 1 100%
Sze Wai Lun Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
R fm TR ERAT SRELEZEA 1 100%
Notes: st -

All the 432,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings
Limited, which is in turn held by Rich Cheer Development Limited
acting as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust
is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Ng Sing Mui as settlor and
Rich Cheer Development Limited as trustee on 8 January 2015. The
beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun
and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. Madam Ng Sing Mui is the settlor of the Sze Family
Trust and the sole director of Sze’s Holdings Limited and therefore Madam
Ng Sing Mui is deemed or taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000
Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of
the SFO. Madam Ng Sing Mui is also the sole director and shareholder of
Rich Cheer Development Limited.
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2. Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Ms. Sze Tan Nei is
one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore she is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Sze'’s
Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

3. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is one of
the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore he is deemed and taken to
be interested in all the 432,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings
Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

4. Mr. Ang Ming Wah is interested in 64,000 Shares which may be allotted and
issued to him upon full exercise of all options granted to him under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company nor their associates had any interests and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which each of them has taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which would be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required
to be kept therein, or which would be required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange as at 31
March 2023.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’/

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2023, the following persons (other than the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company pursuant to provision of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the Shares

TERE S HiA LA
B RAEMBONER R AR

1202338318 M FTAL (EERAERT
TETHAERD RARQE RN NABRMR
DHRHEBERARBES A ERAEXVEF2
RIDEAEX A A AT KRB I KB N
45573%5'&)*- FRIEFRGIFEI36IRATF
ENETMPpRSsuta

RIS

Number of Percentage of

Shares held/ interest in

Name of Shareholders Capacity/nature of interest interested in the Company

FR¥s AR AT

RS B3 EEHE RN EE EENBESE

Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 432,000,000 72%

MERZERERAR BmEAA 432,000,000 72%
Rich Cheer Development Interest of controlled corporation as the trustee of

Limited the Sze Family Trust (Note) 432,000,000 72%

SIRERBRAE] SELE#ED FARKREELZEA (D) 432,000,000 72%

Note: The entire issued share capital of Sze's Holdings Limited is held by Rich Cheer
Development Limited as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust
is a discretionary trust established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of
the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. By
virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Rich Cheer Development Limited
is deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by Sze's
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Directors were not
aware that there was any person (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERE BB RAR

Mz ERIERBRADNEMEETRAMRBING
BRERAT (BERRKEENZFEN FA-
MERKEEESREBYLTRIUINSEET
MERREEENREABIE (HPaE) EER
FEMBEA R R L - IRFEF R EHRG HEXV
BHIES BINERARRADREARNEER
MERERBRADEZHENMERDTHEE
Mo

b EXFRIREEIN  1R2023FE3831H &=
WAHBEERAAL (EEHLEAABTETBTH
ANEBRIN RIBWR BN AR B K5 28R
RS BIRERE S RIS & F EXVED
FORBDIFEX AR ABWEN DI KA
HELNIRIBEZE S R EKRAIEI6HFRER
BATEENECMIHERIRA



DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1)
OF THE LISTING RULES

Other than the experiences of the Directors including other directorships
held in the last three years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, which
have been disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” above, the changes in the information of the Directors
since the date of interim report of the Company for the six months ended

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFOHRS

B LB REIE13.51B(1)& 2
=

MERNLR (BENBE=ZFREES

REANBIMEMFZ ST HE LM ZARAT
FFMEEZ  HMEERR) ERNLEXEER
BHREEB —HPEEN BERRABEHE
20228 9H30H L@ A Z HHAZR S /Y B HA
DA IR EHRBFE1351BAKETHRE

30 September 2022 which fall to be disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1) of MEZERIZEFHEFHIAW T :

the Listing Rules are set out below:

Name of Directors Details of Changes

Expuy LEFER

Madam Ng Sing Mui, an executive Her basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$3,757,704 to
Director and the Chairperson HK$3,908,016 with effect from 1 April 2023.

REBLL RITEEREFE HEARFF 03,757,704 7518 £3,908,01678 75 » B2023F48 1 HiEEE K

Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive Director Her basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$3,010,272 to
HK$3,130,680 with effect from 1 April 2023.
MFAHEXZ T HITEE HEAREFMHS,010,2728 7518 £3,130,6808 7T » H2023F4F 1HEEEM

Mr. Ang Ming Wah, an executive Director  His basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$1,551,240 to
HK$1,613,292 with effect from 1 April 2023.
HBRZELL  MITES HEARFFB1,551,2408 7018 £1,613,2928 70 » B2023F 48 1 HiEEE K

Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an executive Director His basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$1,127,304 to
HK$1,172,400 with effect from 1 April 2023.
MEmTE MITES HEAREFHH,127,304B T8 E1,172,40058 77 » H2023F48 1B 4
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COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, each of Sze’s Holdings Limited, Rich
Cheer Development Limited, Madam Ng Sing Mui, Ms. Sze Tan Nei and
Mr. Sze Wai Lun (the “Controlling Shareholders”) have entered into the
deed of non-competition undertakings (the “Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings”) in favour of the Company (for its own and on behalf of
all members of the Group) on 23 February 2017, pursuant to which
each of the Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably and unconditionally,
undertakes and covenants with the Company that during the period that
the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings remains effective, each of
the Controlling Shareholders shall not, and shall procure that none of his/
her/its associates (except any member of the Group), directly or indirectly
(other than through the Group) engage, participate or hold any right or
interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved, whether
as a shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or otherwise (as
the case may be), in any business in competition with or likely to be in
competition with the Group’s existing business activity and any business
activities which may be undertaken by the Group from time to time and/or
which any member of the Group may undertake in Hong Kong from time
to time. Details of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings have been
set out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders
— Deed of Non-competition Undertakings” in the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance with
the terms of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year
ended 31 March 2023. The independent non-executive Directors, having
reviewed the annual declarations and made reasonable enquiry, were
satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms
of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year ended 31
March 2023.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS OR
SUB-CONTRACTORS

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the percentages of (i) revenue
attributable to the Group’s major customers; and (i) cost of services
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers or sub-contractors are set out
below:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFOHRS

TERPRRUEBENSEE

BE2023F3A3HLEFE  ((FEREXTER
FPREGEYE ; RilzEBETEZHEBRRDE
BRGERFAANB D LEHHFIMT ¢

Approximate percentage
of the Group’s

EARERNBAE I
Revenue Cost of Services
Yz PR 75 Y 25
The largest customer RAER 41.4% -
Five largest customers in aggregate ARBERGE 65.8% -
The largest supplier or sub-contractor BRAHERN S EE - 16.5%
Five largest suppliers or sub-contractors in aggregate ~ A AEFR D EE A - 24.9%

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers, five largest suppliers and sub-contractors noted above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or applicable laws of the Cayman lIslands where the
Company is incorporated.

PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 March 2023, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors
nor the Controlling Shareholders nor any of their respective close
associates that compete or may compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2023.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group had not entered into
any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions that are
not exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the public float as required under the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2023 and has continued to maintain such float
as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

There has been no change in auditor in the preceding three years.
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been
audited by BDO Limited, who will retire, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the 2023 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the
2023 AGM to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson and Executive Director

19 June 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

E:F : +852 2218 8288
{3E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 73 to 147, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023 and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2023 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
“Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

WAL EEER S
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Hong Kong
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 4.8 and note 7
to the consolidated financial statements.

Service income from provision of environmental hygiene and related
services is recognised when the services are rendered. We have identified
recognition of revenue as a key audit matter because revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the Group and there is an inherent
risk over the recognition of revenue by the management to meet specific
targets or expectations.

Our responses:

Our audit procedures to address the revenue recognition included the
followings:

° evaluating the appropriateness of the recognition policy with
reference to the relevant accounting standard;

° inspecting, on sample basis, customer contracts to identify terms
and conditions relating to the provision of services;

° performing substantive analytical procedures to assess whether the
recognised service revenue was in line with the expected level;

° inspecting service income recognised during the year, on sample
basis, and comparing details of the service income being
recognised with relevant the underlying documentation, including
service contracts, service records and invoices; and

° assessing, on a sample basis, the service income recorded before
and after the financial year end date with the relevant underlying
documentation, including service contracts and service records,
to verify whether the service income had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 4.6, note 5.2,
note 16 and note 31(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had trade receivables amounted to
HK$80,884,000 after loss allowance of expected credit losses (‘ECL”) of
HK$227,000.

The loss allowance are based on management’s estimate of lifetime ECL
of trade receivables by taking into account the credit loss experience,
ageing of overdue receivables, debtors’ creditworthiness and repayment
history and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date. All of which involve a
significant degree of management judgements.

Since the assessment of ECL of trade receivables is a subjective area
which requires the management’s judgement and uses of estimates, and
in view of the significance of the amount to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, we considered this as a key audit matter.

Our responses:

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment assessment of trade
receivables included:

° evaluating the Group’s policies for estimating the credit loss
allowance with reference to the requirements of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the trade
receivables’ ageing report were classified within the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing individual items in the report with
underlying documentation;

° assessing appropriateness of management’s estimate of credit
loss allowance by examining the information provided by the
management to derive the key parameters and assumptions of
the ECL model adopted by the management, including checking
historical default data, assessing management’s estimated loss
rates and assessing how reasonably management has incorporated
forward-looking information in the ECL allowance; and

° reperforming the calculation of the loss allowance as at 31 March
2023 based on the Group’s credit loss allowance policies.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BWIAZEEEHR S

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wong Kwok Wai

Practising Certificate Number PO6047

Hong Kong, 19 June 2023

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rEEENmR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

2023 2022

2023 20224

Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000

Mk FET FHET

Revenue & 7 462,197 473,685

Cost of services ARFE A A (384,712) (397,336)

Gross profit EF 77,485 76,349

Other income and gains H U A K Uz 7 3,363 1,288

General operating expenses — R ERX (51,377) (51,139)

Finance costs =% 8 (98) (116)

Profit before income tax PRSI A& 9 29,373 26,382

Income tax expense FriSiRB 10 (4,628) (4,286)
Profit for the year and total FRHEMREATEEA
comprehensive income for the year EEER2mIREE4REE

attributable to owners of the Company 24,745 22,096

Earnings per share SRET 13

- Basic —HAK HK4.1 cents HK3.7 cents

=31l =il

— Diluted —8E HK4.1 cents HK3.7 cents

Al =3l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMTINR

As at 31 March 2023 7320233 H31H

2023 2022
20234 20224F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
N F#ET FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN Y 14 32,730 37,784
Prepayments FEIRIE 17 2,845 -
35,575 37,784
Current assets MENEE
Inventories 78 15 76 79
Trade receivables B 5 EWEIE 16 80,884 104,019
Prepayments, deposits and FBNRIEBE T M
other receivables HEWEIE 17 4,521 5,119
Tax recoverable AU [EIFRIE - 19
Cash and cash equivalents REMIREEEY 18 153,957 117,213
239,438 226,449
Current liabilities REBAaRF
Trade payables B S ENEIE 19 14,653 16,331
Accruals, deposits and other payables FEESTER ek
Hh (I FIE 19 32,463 33,036
Lease liabilities HEaE 20 86 408
Bank borrowings RITER 21 2,506 4,034
Tax payable FEIRIE 2,080 1,660
51,788 55,469
Net current assets REEEFHE 187,650 170,980
Total assets less current liabilities WMEERRBHAER 223,225 208,764
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HESRA 20 - 86
Provision for long service payments RERBEHEE 22 10,008 10,946
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE(E 23 1,932 2,354
11,940 13,386
Net assets BEE 211,285 195,378
EQUITY R
Share capital (5% 24 6,000 6,000
Reserves Eaic 25 205,285 189,378
Total equity W 4REE 211,285 195,378
The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 147 were SF73EEFI4TEFIHZGZaMBREER
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 June 2023E6B10HEE S S AR E T & -
2023 and are signed on its behalf by: WHTNEERRES .
Ng Sing Mui Sze Tan Nei
REEN 73 e
Director Director
EF BE

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERRE AR RAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

mAEmEER

Share
Share Share  Merger option Retained
capital premium* reserve* reserve*  profits* Total
FERG 1
a4 RRDiEE SHEHE" fEE REEN “aEt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$H000 HK$000 HK$S000 HK$ 000
FHEx FAExT FE T FTET FER FTET
At 1 April 2021 14202154818 6,000 48,177 20,917 30 133,558 208,682
Final dividend paid (note 12) BEfJRHEARE
(Mf5E12) - - - - (35,400) (35,400)
Profit for the year and total & PUEF KR E N
comprehensive income 2HEWNEAREE
for the year - - - - 22,096 22,096
At 31 March 2022 and 142022538318 K&
1 April 2022 2022F4H1H 6,000 48,177 20,917 30 120,254 195,378
Final dividend paid (note 12) BEfJRHEARRE
(MFzE12) - - - - (8,838  (8,838)
Profit for the year and total £ PR B2 5 9
comprehensive income 2HEWEARER
for the year - - - - 24,745 24,745
Share options lapsed BRMEERRE - - - (4) 4 -
At 31 March 2023 §£2023%3H31H 6,000 48,177 20,917 26 136,165 211,285

*

These reserve balances comprised the reserve account as set out in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

*

ZERBEHRAEGESMBRIRREES
2o
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n\I-F Eﬁ.%;ﬁf.%%

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

2023

2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHEx
Cash flows from operating activities REFHRERE
Profit before income tax FRETISIRATEF] 29,373 26,382
Adjustments for: FHEE .
Interest expenses FMEMZ 98 116
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEVZE -BEX&
equipment R 8 - 59
Write off of property, plant and equipment WEEYZE BB KRt 48 -
Depreciation wE 5,717 6,681
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment B RWEIBRERE
loss on trade receivables, net B (BE) 5 358 74 82)
Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & % & 5 51 &8 & 35 7 35,310 33,156
Decrease in inventories EERLD 3 103
Decrease in trade receivables & 5 s IE R D 23,061 2178
Decrease in prepayments, deposits FEBRIB T Rk EM
and other receivables W R IE R D 598 2,580
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B2 EIE (R /100 (1,678) 1,901
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, deposits FESTER e kEM
and other payables FE(TFRIE GRiZL) 180 (573) 1,352
Decrease in provision for long service payments ~ EHIIRFS & B (938) (2,741)
Cash generated from operations REFRBIRE 55,783 38,529
Interest paid BERFE (83) (89)
Income tax (paid)/refund (B /REIPIER (4,611) 73
Net cash generated from operating activities K& EZEBIFIELIRE P 51,089 38,513
Cash flows from investing activities KREZHRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BEKREE (711) (5,266)
Prepayments for purchase of property, plant EEVE - BEREREZ
and equipment T RIE (2,845) -
Net cash used in investing activities KREZSFARAREFE (3,556) (5,266)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHIRERE
Repayment of bank borrowings BEFITER (1,528) (1,510)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities SHEEEENASE D (408) (770)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities FHEEEENT B (15) 27)
Dividend paid EftIRE (8,838) (35,400)
Net cash used in financing activities B EEIFTAIRE3%E (10,789) (37,707)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERRE AR RAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mARERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

2023 2022
2023 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBFAEEEY
cash equivalents #m, GRd) $%58 36,744 (4,460
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNRERFAEEEBY
of the year 117,213 121,673
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year EXREKRREZEY 153,957 117,213
Analysis of balances of cash and HEeEkREEEBMEGRDN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances R RIBITAARR 153,957 117,213

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
2023 FE R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023FE3831HIEEE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 31 May 2016. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The address of its principal place of business is
Unit 01-02, 9/F., The Octagon, No. 6 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company, collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 34.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Sze’s Holdings
Limited (“Sze’s Holdings”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI") and the entire issued share capital of Sze’s
Holdings is held by Rich Cheer Development Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, as the trustee of a family trust (the
“Sze Family Trust”). The Sze Family Trust is a discretionary trust
established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of the Sze
Family Trust included, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan
Nei. Rich Cheer Development Limited is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERRE AR RAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1 Adoption of revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are
relevant to and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2022.

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 1,

Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Annual improvements to

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16 HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle

The adoption of the amendments to HKFRSs has no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

RMNBEEMBRSEN
(FEAMBEHREER)

2.1 RAARIESTEBMBRS

R

REAFE  AEBEEXRERAT
HHEBEHMAE ((E8G
MAE)) Bz BBV BRSE
Bl Z B8] ZE BT A ER
R2022F 481 BB Z FEHE
ZEEVBERRTEBIHZEM
HIRFTEK ©

BB EL BRE BB
1652 BET PriS™MIA

el BRMEEN—
372 BET BT EARE

EEYHHREER HHIERZ
BT MERT feqt

EHRPHFRELED] 2018F F2020F
B -EEHE BHES

HREEDFRE  MHEREER
REBUMBERE HNEENE
HERHE1658 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSSs (Continued) 2. BMNEAMBFHREED @

2.2 EBiEMERREKZHE]
/IMES] BB BREE

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

L
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the TH A SER A EB TS M BRE
Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been issued, ﬁ Eﬁ W] RIETE BV BR
but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by ZRHEEMAEHRERBERE

$$I§k§%“ﬂ] AEBBERR
ZEEAENEBRABILFER

the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as B L H%’r’éfiﬁ*ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ
Current or Non-current’ F1RZMEET By IETED
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting SR G £ BT BRI E
and HKFRS Practice Policies’ BIRRES
Statement 2 MRS 2E R
BEIRE H25%
21T
Amendments to HKAS 8  Definition of Accounting HEgst &£ gttt NER
Estimates' FILZ1EBET
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets SR G £ HEBERFESL
and Liabilities arising from a B8R 2 1&5T NEEREE
Single Transaction’ BRAZIRE
RIE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with HB gL M A5 S22 SR Y FE TR
Covenants? FIRZ1BET FaEe
HK Interpretation 5 Classification by the Borrower BHEZEFER BEMAHEHEZ
(Revised) Presentation of a Term Loan that Contains (B&1E5T) B4 75 BREEKFX
of Financial Statements a Repayment on Demand EEER]| ZEBHERZ
Clause? VA e

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of these new/revised standards will not result in significant
impact on amounts reported in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

B

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance which concern the preparation of financial
statements. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000") except otherwise indicated.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Business combination and basis of

consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(a)

(b)

(c)

BREHA
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BREMFPIERBRRYBREMN
RERTEMARS - LS IR S5
BRYEBHRFAES LHRAR
ERNBERRBEER -

sEE
HREMBREDSRBELHAE
HERR -

MEEE B REFNEH

BB AFERN EEMBRET

UAT (BTl (HIFERERE

lejﬁﬁiém%) 2% MrA8EY
REERBETM ((FBT) -

4. EXRGETER

EHAHRIEGEE

REMBRESEEAADREN
BRABZHMBRER -EELRAR
NBBR G RAEHERARE R
MR RERE SV HRERTHY
o RBIREEITHHE EIRHE
EREEERNEERIRZHN
FEULIER T RSB R bR o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
2023 FE R

31



32

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.2

4.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: (i) power over the
investee, (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and (jii) the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERXGEHEE @

(Continued)

4.3 ME -BER=E @

4.3 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on the following property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line basis to allocate their
costs less their residual value over their estimated useful lives.
The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
The useful lives are as follows:

Qver the lease term
Over the shorter of
unexpired term of lease
or 50 years

Over the shorter of
lease term or 5 years

Leasehold land
Buildings situated on leasehold land

Leasehold improvement

Office furniture and equipment 15-25%
Machinery and equipment 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

Other properties leased for own use Over the lease term

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

UTYE BB RRENITER
REGSAERFEHAERERE
DERERTHREGREESE -
ERER MNBERTEX
RERSBHBRERARE (B
B) EREHRWT

HELH HEH
fiRAE FEMEEHH0E
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R R E 25%
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FEERN HEH
HiENE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023  #{Z2023F3831HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.4 Leases

Accounting as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise leases which are short-
term leases. The Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term of 12 months or less
and do not contain purchase option. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee;
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the right-
to-use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability.

Other than the above right-of-use assets, the Group has
leased a number of properties under tenancy agreements
which the Group exercises its judgement and determines that
it is a separate class of asset apart from the leasehold land
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERXGEHEE @

(Continued)

4.4 Leases (Continued) 4.4 THE @

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (i) amounts expected to be payable by
the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (jii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023  #{Z2023F3831HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.4 Leases (Continued)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a
lessee extension or termination option being exercised), it
adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect
the payments to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. The carrying value
of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element
of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is
revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value
of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount
being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero,
any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease
with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate
with the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate
lease, in all other cases, where the renegotiated increases the
scope of the lease (whether that is an extension to the lease
term, or one or more additional assets being leased), the
lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable
on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being
adjusted by the same amount. If the renegotiation results in a
decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount
of the lease liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by
the same proportion to reflect the partial or full termination of
the lease with any difference recognised in profit or loss. The
lease liability is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying
amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments
over the renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modification date
and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

4. EXGHEE @

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.4

4.5

Leases (Continued)

Accounting as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease
that was not part of the original terms and conditions of the
lease are accounted for as lease modifications. The Group
accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, recognising
the remaining lease payments as income on a either a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
remaining lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023  #{Z2023F3831HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at
the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The
following is the measurement category into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

4. EXGHEE @

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECL are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECL: these are the ECL
that result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECL:
these are ECL that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECL is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECL based on lifetime ECL. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

46 TFRITH @

(ii)

TREERERE
AEBREMRBBHREFE
NEMEENTBRHREERR
(TFEHEEBE) BRB
BEE - TRHEEB BRI
BUTEESE ()12
BHREEHE  ERSAH
BI1I2EB AR EEHEENE
MEHMMEZNEAREE
B RQEHRRESES
B ERIARESFHRN
FRBERIERERNENEMHM
BHMRAEEBE G5
BHREEEERE BHR
RBATEEEREER
BHRREOHRE-

BHREEHEEAEEHEN
BMERIMEGS - EEBED
BAERRES K EURAIFR
BEREREEAEETR
HWEHNAAREREZMH
WEBEE-RERERE
BEERAERNERENE
FARLIR -

rEBCREBMBREE
AIFEOSREIE AT EBZE
WRRIER R > AR
EHRAEEEERFERAN
EEBER -AEBERILR
BARERBEEEEEER
StEZEEER TIRER
AR EZ BT ERREE
RIGIFHEARE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
2023 FE R

39



90

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For other financial assets at amortised cost, ECL are
based on lifetime ECL except when there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the allowance will be based
on the 12 months ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information
analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z2023%3H31HIEEE

4. EXGHEE @

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

o it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are past due for a number of years. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
payables, accruals, deposits and other payables
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERRE AR RAR

4., ERGHHE®@

46 €T H @
(ii)

EEREZREENT B
AT IR SR E E R # AL
A (B EREARE RSB B H#)
stHE - HRIFEERETRH
EEMS > MERATLRE

AREIMRERSTE -

(iii) THEE

FEERGFEEEENEN
HHEREEDH - ZHEH
RASERNERE RN &
ANFERPAEERNEREMN

RAsE-

BREBHENSFTENERHE

(E

REBIERAFEZETMER
(BREEZEAMRIE B
ER B UKREMEAR
BRIRTER) HERRAE
BRA R AR B IHM AT E
BN B MR8

N
500

Wi s B RN AR LA
B R B BB B E T

BEERo
BRARZX

BRANEEDAETREE
HEMEERHENEIRINE
R A 0 EC ) B A S A
BRAXHAE BREAERS
THREENERNASFH
SR ERERE BB N
FERE IR 5T R AR T IRMA

TR o

ETREERERSE @



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

4., ERGHHE®@

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

(v)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

4.8

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represented cash and bank balances.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023  #{Z2023F3831HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.8 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods
or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z2023%3H31HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERXGEHEE @

(Continued)

4.8 Revenue recognition (Continued) 4.8 W FER @

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Service income is recognised in the accounting period
in which the services are rendered.

(i)  Income from sales of goods is recognised at point in
time when the goods are delivered to customers and
title has passed.

(i)  Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial asset that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
asset, the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of
the loss allowance).

(iv)  Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the customers retain
retention money to secure the due performance of the
contracts. Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which
it is invoiced to the customer. If the considerations (including
advances received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the output method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023FE3831HIEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty
related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for tax purposes. Except for initial recognition
of assets and liabilities that are not part of the business
combination which affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, taxable temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised, provided that the deductible temporary
differences are not arises from initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction other than in a business combination
that affects neither taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period, and
reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income tax levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Income taxes (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

4.10 Employee benefits

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in
the current and prior periods. Liabilities recognised in
respect of long service payment are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. The cost of providing the long service payment
liabilities is charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The long service payment
liabilities are determined by the recent remuneration
of the eligible employees based on the requirement of
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the
Group.

4.11 Impairment loss of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment; and

° interests in subsidiaries

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERXGEHEE @

(Continued)

411 EERIBEERERE®

4.11 Impairment loss of non-financial assets

(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

4.12Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets
is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

4.13 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable and are recognised as other
income and gains, rather than reducing the related expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.14 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive as a
result of a past event, which will probably result in an outflow
of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

4.15 Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

The fair value of services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity under the
heading of share option reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

4. EXGHEE @

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.16 Related parties

@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

)

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

)

(i)

V)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.16 Related parties (continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in ().

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.17 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of
those components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
(‘HKFRS 8”) are the same as those used in its consolidated
financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ
from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year is set out below.

5.1 Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 4.3.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPT'ONS (Continued)

5.2

5.3

54

Impairment of trade receivables

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 for
the financial assets measured at amortised cost requires
judgement when determining impairment losses.

The Group’s loss allowances are based on management’s
estimate of the lifetime ECL, which is estimated by taking
into account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue
receivables, debtors’ creditworthiness and repayment history
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date. Changes in
these estimates could have a significant impact on the loss
allowance to be recognised or reversed in future years.

Provision for long service payments

The Group’s provision for long service payments is based
on the best estimation of the probable future payments that
have been earned by the employees from their services to
the Group at the end of each reporting period, calculated in
accordance with the relevant laws. The Group’s net obligation
are dependent on future events and recent payment
experience may not be indicative of future payments. Any
increase or decrease in the provision would affect profit or
loss in future years.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognised
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z2023%3H31HIEEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
who are the chief operating decision makers for the purpose
of resources allocation and assessment of performance, is the
financial information of the Group as a whole as reported under
HKFRSs. The Group is currently organised into two operating
divisions as follows:

(1)  Environmental hygiene and related services
(2)  Airline catering support services

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.17. For
the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating
resources between segments:

= all assets are allocated to operating segments other than tax
recoverable and cash and cash equivalents.

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
bank borrowings and tax payable.

- all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments other
than directors’ emoluments, finance costs related to bank
borrowings, income tax expense and certain other income
and expenses incurred by the head office.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR ER R MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;E2023%F3831HIEEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. THEM @
For the year ended 31 March 2023 # E2023FE3/31HILEEE
Environmental Airline
hygiene catering
and related support
services services Total
RIBFER A= & B8R
1B RA AR TS S RIRTE 4Est
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET F#ET FET
Revenue g
Sales to external customers HINBRPIHE 462,197 - 462,197
Segment results DEEE 41,614 - 41,614
Directors’ emoluments E i (11,295)
Finance costs B E A (83)
Unallocated corporate income AR ECAB WA KRR
and expenses, net FEB (863)
Profit before income tax FRETISIR AT @A 29,373
Income tax expense FrigiRBE (4,628)
Profit for the year FREH 24,745
Segment assets NEEE 121,056 = 121,056
Cash and cash equivalents B MIREEEY 153,957
Total assets BB E 275,013
Segment liabilities DEEE 59,142 - 59,142
Bank borrowings RITER 2,506
Tax payable FEI 318 2,080
Total liabilities BE48E 63,728
Other segment information HithaEpE R
Depreciation e (5,717) - (5,717)
Additions to non-current assets  FERENES AL N 711 - 711
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. THEM @

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B E2022F3HA31HILFEE
Environmental Airline
hygiene catering
and related support
services services Total
RIEGER =& aR
islealivei ZIERRT wast
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
TFET FET TFAET
Revenue &
Sales to external customers HINEPE S IHE 473,685 - 473,685
Segment results DEEE 38,247 - 38,247
Directors’ emoluments EEHME (11,278)
Finance costs A& AL A (89)
Unallocated corporate income RO ECAB WA KRS
and expenses, net FEB (498)
Profit before income tax BRPTSAR AT F) 26,382
Income tax expense TSR~ (4,286)
Profit for the year FRN@F 22,096
Segment assets D BB E EE 147,001 - 147,001
Tax recoverable AU ERIE 19
Cash and cash equivalents REMRIREEEY 117,213
Total assets BEE 264,233
Segment liabilities DEEE 63,161 - 63,161
Bank borrowings RITER 4,034
Tax payable FE{TIRIE 1,660
Total liabilities =N Rk 68,855
Other segment information ~ Hfth3 & H
Depreciation e (6,681) - (6,681)
Additions to non-current assets  FERBHE E 1 N 6,726 - 6,726
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
place of the Group’s operation is in Hong Kong. For the purpose
of segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8, Hong Kong is
regarded as the Group’s place of domicile. All the Group’s revenue
and non-current assets are attributable to Hong Kong for the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, being the single geographical
region.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided. All the Group’s revenue from
external customers is sourced from Hong Kong.

Revenue from customers which individually contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue, are set out as follows:

6. DEER @

RABABREERAT  AEBFER
EMBNUNEB MIBESEBM B R
EHERESFETHBERIREMS
ERWEATEBMMTH - AEBESE
2023F K2022FE3831HIEFEEBFR
BREEIERBEEHREE—HE

& P 3 i B DUPR 4R £ AR 75 4t 1k 2% 4R
o AEER B INBE P BIFT A W 1T
BRRER

ERMEAERKRTI0%FI U LHNE R
Wk BN

ZRA (1)
= FB (f5E1)

Customer A (note 1)
Customer B (note 1)

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
191,208 197,937
62,704 57,885

Note:

1) They are customers for environmental hygiene and related services for the
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 7. W B B U A B U &=
GAINS
Revenue represents the income from environmental hygiene and Wi iR IR @ £ RABRR T E
related services rendered. ERUA ©
(@) The Group’s revenue recognised within the scope of HKFRS (@ AEERESEFHHRSELFE5
15 are as follows: SREEANER WM RUWT -
2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Revenue: s
Environmental hygiene IR £ R ABRARRTS
and related services 462,197 473,685
For the year ended 31 March 2023, revenue of HE20283F3H31HIEEE &
HK$462,197,000 (2022: HK$473,685,000) was recognised B RS ER F R U 22462,197,00078 7T
over time. (20224 : 473,685,0007 7T) °
(o) As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the aggregated amount of (b) FR2023F K%2022%43831H 7
the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance REAEERESHNEBETHR NE
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts as follows: HNEENRZBLEZEUWT !
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFHET
Expected to be recognised within one year FAEAR —E AR 304,000 322,965
Expected to be recognised after one year FEHAR —EBRER 72,974 199,485

376,974 522,450

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 7. WEKREMEARYE @
GAINS (Continued)
(¢) The Group’s other income and gains recognised during the () AEBRFAREIBIEMUA KR
year are as follows: W

2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFAT
Other income and gains: HMA R -
Bank interest income FRITH B WA 357 -
Sales of scrap materials BRI EH & 519 373
Reversal of impairment loss of trade B 5 IR E RS 18
receivables, net #[o] > 358 - 82
Government subsidies (note) BB (fiEE) 2,487 830
Rental income HEWA = 3
3,363 1,288
Note: MIE -
For the year ended 31 March 2023, the amounts represented the B E2023F3H31HIEEE 2+ I
subsidies of HK$2,487,000 obtained from the Employment Support RIFEHBTBRNITHEBARENREE
Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, which was provided by the MEECE THWRMENSESH M
Government of the Hong Kong Special administrative Region. 2,487,000/ 7T °
For the year ended 31 March 2022, the amounts represented subsidies to HE2022FE3B831HIEFEE Z+58
the Group for phasing out certain diesel motor vehicles of HK$830,000. BHAERAAE TRBRENFHRY
830,000/ 75 ©
The Group does not have other unfulfiled obligations relating to these AEARELAZSHARNEMEKRE
subsidies. T&R®-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RMIEMZA
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEFRFIE 83 89
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEHE 15 27
98 116
9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRFRIGIRATEFI
Profit before income tax for the year has been arrived at after ERBRAAERAERN &N, (5
charging/(crediting): A)
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration Z BN =
— audit services —BEHIRTS 600 600
— non-audit services —IEEF R 380 160
980 760
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses RAMAZNEFEERE 12,834 12,863
Depreciation e 5,717 6,681
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - -BERKREZEE
equipment - 59
Written off of property, plant and equipment  #J2& ~ B = & =5 & 2 Hifl 85 48 -
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment B EWFIEREREY
loss on trade receivables, net B (BE) 34 74 (82)
Short-term lease expenses CHATR SR 420 354
Employee costs (including directors’ BEMAK (BIEEEME) -
remuneration):
— Wages, salaries and allowances —TE e mih 272,849 282,228
— Retirement scheme contributions —RIRET BN 10,764 11,508
283,613 293,736
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. RIS X
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in accordance with two- EAN BN EBFFHN M ARG 5T #
tiered profits tax rate regime. The first HK$2,000,000 of assessable EH-RNMEFE ~EBSERERE
profits of a qualifying entity of the Group is taxed at 8.25% and 2,000,000 st FER a1/ 1£8.25% 2
the assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 are taxed at 16.5% MEHMIRIE > MiE382,000,00078 7T
for both years. The assessable profit of other subsidiaries in Hong M FE SR8 F3216.5% 2 13 K Em iR
Kong are taxed at 16.5%. o AN EBNHBARANERERE

F#216.5% R IR K BARFRIE ©

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BRI IB—FANER 5,089 3,850
Current tax — (over)/under-provision BIHAMIBE—BEFE
in prior years (BREEE) BHETRE (39) 60
Deferred taxation (note 23) IEIEFRIA (Fi5E23) (422) 376
4,628 4,286
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit e 2R BERERNESTEN T
at applicable tax rate: AR
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before income tax FRETS AR A 29,373 26,382
Tax at applicable tax rates B E AR 4,681 4,188
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBBWANRBLE (653) (603)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ARSNGB E 657 671
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEEE (BREEE)
BHENE (39) 60
Tax concession RIEH R (18) (30)
Income tax expense TSR 4,628 4,286

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR M. EBEERGSREEREBINE
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(@) EFME

(a) Directors’ remuneration

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
e mk FELV
we Hitnig# HIETEAL BE LG ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TER TER
Year ended 31 March 2023  #ZE2023E3A31HILEE
Executive directors: HiTES:
Madam Ng Sing Mui SEELT - 3,758 307 188 4,253
Ms. Sze Tan Nei L £ - 3,010 246 151 3,407
Mr. Ang Ming Wah RERELL - 1,551 127 - 1,678
Mr. Sze Wai Lun MRfmEE - 1,127 92 18 1,237
Independent non-executive U IFHITES
directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen  RIEH 4 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chung Koon Yan BER%E 240 - S = 240
Mr. Chan Chun Sing RIRERE 240 = - - 240
Total At 720 9,446 772 357 11,295
Year ended 31 March 2022~ #ZE202253H31HLEE
Executive directors: HTESE:
Madam Ng Sing Mui S@EiELT - 3,684 307 184 4,175
Ms. Sze Tan Nei HEFHEL T - 2,951 246 148 3,345
Mr. Ang Ming Wah HRRELE - 1,621 127 3 1,651
Mr. Sze Wai Lun MRmEE - 1,105 9% 18 1,215
Independent non-executive BIFFHITES :
directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen ~ RIFH 4 240 - - - 240
Mr. Chung Koon Yan EIRALE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung' EEaEE 86 - - - 86
Mr. Wong Yat Sum' BoLEE 86 - - - 86
Mr. Chan Chun Sing BiRBLE 240 - - - 240
Total &3t 892 9,261 772 353 11,278
Retired with effect from 10 August 2021 L H2021F8H 108 R F

No director waived any emoluments during the year ended 31

March 2023 (2022: nil).

HE2023F3831HIEFEE > i
EEERETAME (20224F :

) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2022: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in note 11(a) above. The
emoluments of the remaining one (2022: one) individual was

M.EFEREREEEMNE @

(b) RfimRE#HAL

FrEBRURSMEALTH M1
(20224 : 1) BEATES>
HE =80 EXHzE11(a) o 8R T
—fiL (20224 : —1u) ALHIENE

as follows: mr
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET TFHET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥7< ~ @ B K E &R 774 759
Discretionary bonus IETEAT 63 63
Retirement scheme contributions BIREH RN 18 18
855 840

The remuneration paid to the above non-director highest paid
individual was within the following emolument band:

ENFLEXFEERSHALY
HMAR M8 E :

2023 2022
20234 20224
Number of Number of
individual individual

A A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007 7T

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company or any of the five highest paid employees
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR M1.EBTRSRETEEME @

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(c) Senior management’s emoluments (c) SREEEME

FRENTHAERSREERE
(EXKEE11(a)FriR BBV E EFR
5N BIFRBN N F I T AN S E

The remuneration paid to the senior management of the
Group (other than the directors as disclosed in note 11(aq)
above) for the year fell within the following emolument band:

2023 2022
20235 20224
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2% 1,000,000 75 2 2
12. DIVIDENDS 12. BB
(a) Dividends attributable to the year: (a) EAEEEMLRE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Final dividend proposed of HK1.650  E#ERZEERKIERE

cents (2022: HK1.473 cents) per 1.650781l (20224 : 1.473

ordinary share B 9,900 8,838

The final dividend proposed after the reporting date for
the year ended 31 March 2023 is subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting and has
not been recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2023.

(o)  Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year:

REE2023FE3831HILEEEZ
REDBPEBEERBRNZRBRE
BRREERREF A L&
REMERFSES BuER
2023F3H31HERAEE-

b) BEVMHREEEBERE HKNEE
EHUE ROR AT

2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT

Final dividend paid in respect of
prior year

— HK1.473 cents (2022: HK5.9 cents)  — &R E@EAR1.4737810
(20224F : 5.9%1)

per ordinary share

BEFEIKYRARSE

8,838 35,400
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. SRR &7
The calculation of earnings per share is based on the earnings RBFHDIRBEREBEERQE#
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average BAERGEERAREETEERNIMRE
number of ordinary shares in issue during the respective years. FHEEE
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on EREARBERANTILIBEUTEN
the following information: FE

2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Earnings &
Profit attributable to owners of the Company ZA B A A& @ 24,745 22,096
2022
20224F
000
TR
Number of shares Rin&8
Weighted average number of ordinary shares #t 5T 8 & £ 748 2 ) 595 18 A%
for the purpose of basic earnings per share N 9E 600,000 600,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: B #BH L ER 22 .
— Share options — g R - 8
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FhatH &R # ERF M
for the purpose of diluted earnings per TR IR &
share 600,000 600,008
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended B E2023FE3R31HIEEENER
31 March 2023 is based on the profit for the year attributable to BEABATREBEALABDER ABK
owners of the Company of HK$24,745,000 (2022: HK$22,096,000) FEREF24,745,0008 7T (20224
and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 22,096,000 1) K& £2023F373 31
600,000,000 (2022: 600,000,000) in issue during the year ended HIEFEEETZERNMEFTHE
31 March 2023. 600,000,0008% (20224 : 600,000,000
B%) st & o
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended B E2023F3H3 M HILFESREER
31 March 2023 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s M EL EBRRITER QDB
share options because the exercise price of those share options BZEBRENTEERRMDITF
was higher than the average market price for shares. HmERE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13. B IR EF w
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2022 are B E2022F3831HIEFEZSRE S
calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary BRLREMEH IS BRESRE
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive ordinary MEETERARME LG ELRARE
shares. FTEISH
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME - -BERZE
Other
Office Machinery properties
Leasehold Leasehold furniture and and Motor leased for
improvement land Buildings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles own use Total
WARE Hittg M
HERE HELTH BF R&fE BEkRE RE HEME ait

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TER TER TER TER TER TER

Cost D%

At 1 April 2021 202154818 3,011 21,780 12,792 4,713 10,975 18,053 2,413 73,737
Additions RE 432 - - 780 728 3,977 809 6,726
Disposals HE - - - (52) 677) (1,980) - (2,709)
Written off b6 (1,041) - - - - - 2,413) (3,454)
At 31 March 2022 and 1202238318 &

1 April 2022 2022454818 2,402 21,780 12,792 5,441 11,026 20,050 809 74,300
Additions HE - - - - 605 106 - 711
Written off ] - - - - (1,133) (562) - (1,695)
At 31 March 2023 #2023%38318 2,402 21,780 12,792 5,441 10,498 19,504 809 73,316
Accumulated depreciation R E
At 1 April 2021 202144818 3,011 5,285 3,105 1,947 8,831 11,950 1,810 35,939
Provided for the year FERERE 119 628 369 601 1,219 2,872 873 6,681
Written back on disposals R H & B Dl - - - (26) (644) (1,980) - (2,650)
Written back on written off i S5 [a] (1,041) - - - - - 2,413 (3,454)
At 31 March 2022 and #20226E3B318 &

1 April 2022 202254818 2,089 5913 3474 2,522 9,406 12,842 270 36,516
Provided for the year EREE 200 628 369 634 854 2,627 405 5717
Written back on written off  FA 88 B 5 [0 - - - - (1,091) (556) - (1,647)
At 31 March 2023 #202343A31H 2,289 6,541 3,843 3,156 9,169 14,913 675 40,586
Net book value IREFE
At 31 March 2023 1#202353A31H 113 15,239 8,949 2,285 1,329 4,681 134 32,730
At 31 March 2022 42022638318 313 15,867 9,318 2919 1,620 7,208 539 37,784
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BB R 5% 8 @)
(Continued)
Notes: MiEE -
(@  As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the leasehold land and buildings are ()  F2023FE K%202243831H  HE i

pledged as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings and banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 21).

()  Right-of-use assets (b)

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

Leasehold land held for own use FIEERANMEELH
Other properties leased for own use HthBEAEEYE

REFERELSAERRITERRE
EMERZRTREZER (HaE21)

EREEE

REMEESNBONEAREENK
EREDRUT

2023 2022
20234 20226
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
15,239 15,867
134 539

The followings are the amounts recognised in profit or loss and
commitments in relation to leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by 2B EEHA B DN EREEEN

class of underlying asset: EER
— leasehold land held for own use —FH1EEANHEE L
— other properties leased for own use —HthEREEEYE
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HESEFE Fi:Es)
Expenses relating to short-term leases FEHATAES W

Aggregate undiscounted commitments for 2 HATE BRI R AL IR AR HE AR RE
short-term leases

ERETHEINSE K EEEARK
WO

2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBxT

628 628
405 873

15 27
420 354
144 133

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there were no additions to right-
of-use assets (2022: HK$809,000 and the additions are non-cash
transaction).

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of HK$843,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: HK$1,151,000). Details of the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out on note 20.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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HE20283543831HIEEE  BEMES
HEEARE (20224 : 809,000 A
ZERBBIERERH) °

HE2023F3HA3IHIEEE ) AEEA
E2RE M 4EEEA843,000% 7T (2022
F:1,151,000%7T) - BREEESEZE
H Tt B E R M E20 0



15. INVENTORIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

15. &

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET

Consumables, at cost

HFEm (RAE)

76 79

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

16. & 5 U FRIE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance

B 5 EWEIE bR 1B R H 80,884 104,019

Trade receivables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both

years.

The credit terms of the trade receivables are ranged from 0 to 60
days (2022: 0 to 60 days) from the date of billing. Further details
on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade

receivables are set out in note 31(b).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowance as of the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

RWEFE 85 BUIRIES U AT
B

BoEWFIENEEHEREHEIE
N FOKRZEBOK (20224 : 0K EB0K) ©
BEHAEREERENRE S EWFIE
FFEXEERBZE—PFHEBHRNVN
5E31(b) °

BERSHR ERERARKRNGE
BEFENEZSBRRFERE DT :

2023 2022

20235 20224

HK$'000 HK$’000

F#ET FHET

Within one month —EAR 30,582 40,849
One to three months —E=1@A 41,719 52,684
More than three months @B L 8,583 10,486
80,884 104,019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR ER R MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;E2023%F3831HIEEE

17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER  17. 78
RECEIVABLES U

2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Non-current: JETRE -
Prepayments FE{TFIE 2,845 -
Current: TREn -
Prepayments for consumables JHFEMBTEIRRIE 128 94
Other prepayments HMFE A 3,919 4,568
Deposits & 408 451
Other receivables HiEWIE 66 6
4,521 5,119
18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. RERIINEEEW
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFHET
Cash and bank balance RERIRITEER 83,672 117,213
Short-term bank deposits with original FEEHADOR=EAN
maturity less than three months EHRIRITERR 70,285 -

153,957 117,213
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE2023%3331HIEFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. B 5 R EHME(IFRIE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Trade payables (note (a)) B2 EAIE (5ka) 14,653 16,331
Accrued staff costs FESHE TR AR 27,190 26,626
Other accrued expenses (note (b)) HhfESTRESZ (F5E(D)) 4,387 5,388
Other payables HMhpE g 324 460
Deposits BE 562 562
32,463 33,036
Notes: Pt -
(@  Trade payables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both years. (a) MPHMEEE > B5REMRELLUET
'fa o
The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date as of the HEREHF ENZZHHNESRE
end of the reporting period is as follows: IRIBERE DTUT ©
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within one month —ERAR 9,330 10,032
One to three months —E=@H 3,529 4,328
More than three months =@EBMUE 1,794 1,971
14,653 16,331
(b)  As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, other accrued expenses mainly (b)  F2023FE K%202243831H » EfthfESt
represented the accrued untaken paid leave to employees. HETEIERERAAZASHERR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR ER R MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;E2023%F3831HIEEE

20. LEASE LIABILITIES 20. 1 HE&FE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRITEAEBRERZEESBR
the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the year: TEAEEER

2023 2022

2023%F 20224
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum minimum Minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHEE REHEE REHRE REHEE
T TRRIR{E =R IRIRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FH7T FHBT

Not later than one year TBR—F 87 86 423 408
Later than one year and not —ZF&EFEF M E
later than two years - - 87 86
87 86 510 494
Less: future interest B RRF BRI
expenses 1) - (16) _
Present value of lease HEaRBRE
liabilities 86 86 494 494
Analysis as reporting HERENDNS !
purpose as:
Current liabilities pE=kiE 86 408
Non-current liabilities El =R = - 86
86 494
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RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

21. BANK BORROWINGS

21. IR{T1E ™

Bank loans RITER

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FET
2,506 4,034

All of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2023 and 2022
contained a repayable on demand clause and therefore the entire
bank loan balances for both years have been classified as current
liabilities.

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors of
the Company considered it is unlikely that the banks will exercise
its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company considered that the bank loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled payment dates set out in the loan
agreements. An analysis of the bank loans in accordance with the
contractual repayment terms are summarised in the table below:

AREFEF 20235 &2022F3H31HH
FrBIRITERHBREREBERR
EmEEENEIMIETERGEHED
HEARBEE.

Rt RAEBNMBRR xRRESE
B RIT AR ERNBERILAE
Mo AANBEERD RITEMERE
ERMmEm A MRAHRERE T
RPARENERRSNRITERD
#r

2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Analysed based on scheduled repayment iRi% & 17 ZHFRE A2
terms set out in the loan agreements, EMHREITH O
into:
Within one year —FR 1,573 1,538
In the second year B_F 933 1,578
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-—FEFAHF
(BEEEMF) - 918
2,506 4,034
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

21.

22.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) All bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. As at 31
March 2023, the bank borrowings carried floating interest rates at 1.50%
(2022: 1.98%) per annum.

(ii) As at 31 March 2023, the bank borrowings were secured by the
properties held by the Group with net carrying amount of approximately
HK$24,188,000 (2022: HK$25,185,000).

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE
PAYMENTS

21.

22,

RITER @

(i) FTBIRITERUB T E o 12202343
B31H  RITERFAMNNIEF RS
F1.50/E (20224 : 1.98F) o

iy  M2023%3H831H  RITERBLRE

Fff 43 BR M3 {5 4924,188,00058 7T (2022
£ 125,185,000 70) Z W E(EIKIR

RARB A

Liabilities for employee benefit comprise:

BERMEESE:

Long service payments accrual, classified as EHIRFE S ETER

non-current liabilities

DIERIEREERE

2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET BT
10,008 10,946

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57, the Group
has the obligation to pay long service payment to qualifying
employees in Hong Kong upon retirement, subject to a minimum
of 5 years employment period, which the amount is calculated
by multiplying two-thirds of the employee’s final wages (or two-
thirds of HK$22,500, whichever is less) by the number of years of
continuous service, capped at HK$390,000.

Provisions under the Employment Ordinance, Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance and Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance permit the Group to offset long service payment
payable against the accrued benefits attributable to the Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and ORSO Scheme (as defined
in note 27). The long service payment obligation, if any, is presented
on a net basis.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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BEFRAE

RIBFSTEREGRA AEBEERKED
REBNEGEREENRERERSE
NEERE: TEFRRDABSE
SHENDREERKFEN=22_ (F
22,500 T =22 " LREES
) RUBFERENEHFESH B
= 7390,00058 7T ©

RIBIG) - safItE AREE 5t &8RPI KB
ERWFFERANRE RFFAER U
7 £ [ 7L 58 1 1 A AR = 5t B8R B K B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 23. IEIEMIEE G
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements RAFERBFFEEHEDIELERIE
during the current and prior year are as follows: BEREHZFHBUT

Accelerated tax
depreciation

RIS E
HK$’000
FHET
As at 1 April 2021 R2021%F481H 1,978
Charged for the year (note 10) FRIkE (FzE10) 376
As at 31 March 2022 and at 1 April 2022 72202253831 H K 2022F481H 2,354
Credited for the year (note 10) FERNETA (FEE10) (422)
As at 31 March 2023 72202353 831H 1,932
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, iR #
Number
of shares HK$’000
i & B FHAT
Authorised: AT
Shares of HK$0.01 each SREE0C.01E TR
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, 2021548 1H ~ 20224
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 3H318 ~2022F481H
F22023%E3H31H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EZFTRAE
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, 202148 1H ~ 20224
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 3H3182022F481H
F22023F3H31H 600,000,000 6,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

25. RESERVES

Group

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves for the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 75. The natures and
purposes of reserves within equity are as follows:

(@ Share premium account represents the excess of the
proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares received over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued.

(o) The merger reserve arose as a result of the group
reorganisation and represented the difference between the
consideration under the group reorganisation and the nominal
value of the share capital of the subsidiaries then acquired.

(c)  The share option reserve represents the cumulative expenses
recognised on the granting of share options to the eligible

25, {# &

REE

REEEH E2023F K2022F3531H
tEEZ#ESHZBEENNE758
ZiREEnEHRN - REMEZLE
RERNT

(@) BR17 i (B AR5 35 17 & 18 AR A YL EY
ZAHR/MEBHAATEHTR
PEENSESD -

b) EHEEHNHEEBREHEELH
EEEEHEBE TN ZABRERF
WENBARRAmMEZER-

BhE#eEEIEBHEBERSAE
K2RERHBEREFEIEZR

c

participants over the vesting period. FHFSE o
Company PN/
Share Merger  Share option Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
i EE XA fitfs R ER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TET TET
At 1 April 2021 120214818 48177 (10) 30 35,434 83,631
Final dividend paid BERRERE - - - (35,400) (35,400)
Profit for the year and total ~ ERENRENZE N R

comprehensive income for ~ #2%E

the year - - - 9,830 9,830
At 31 March 2022 and 1 120223831 B %20225%

April 2022 4B1H 48,177 (10) 30 9,864 58,061
Final dividend paid BEARBEKE - - - (8,838) (8,838)
Profit for the year and total ~ EREHN RERZE R

comprehensive income for 4848

the year - - - 9,782 9,782
Share options lapsed BRMERE - - @ 4 -
At 31 March 2023 1R2023%E3831H 48177 (10) 26 10,812 59,005

1 26 WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z2023%3H31HIEEE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was adopted
by the sole shareholder of the Company (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”). The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to aid the
Company in retaining key and senior employees of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 192,000. No share option may be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees of any member of the Group and any executive
directors of the Company.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

On 23 February 2017, the Company has authorised to grant
to 6 eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of
192,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. On
the same date, the Company has granted share options to 6
eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of 192,000
shares.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
share option offered under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be equal to the offer price of HK$0.42 per share.

26. fE g 5T E

(i)

BRAR%E

&l

EriEREst

R2017E 28210 » KA E) ME—
PRERMN—TERERESE (TeX
NHAEESRBRESEL - BX
NESE:S ﬁuﬁﬁﬁﬂ% FEIA—IER
BT e ER T EERE
$"1¢§a€.’£z&%£§&%%&1§
=

RBEE R QR EES AR E
FEIRENF AR EEITS
M FTHETHNRMDEE LIRA
192,000/ W IRIFE R A EE
AR IR ST IR H BB R B Y
BERRE A ZREEAER
R o

BERZHEEUEAEETMAMN
BRAZ TTTEH&‘Z%H&{EEM
REABZEBMRITES -

AR N R AR R R AT A R
REAARDZM1IBT AR

= o

R20178E2823H » "B B #E
BRSO 1
FHEEERZHEERE AR
%4 $£192,000018 B 1D - FAE R >
ZK/ATWG%A/%:%%/A%&tH
PIERE S 192,000 210 AV BE
B HE o

MBERAMEERBRESSE
TREZEAREBREZRKRD

REBEREAZEBER0.428 T
ZiEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023  #{Z2023F3831HIEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to exercise the share
options granted during the option period under the Pre-IPO

Share Option Scheme in the following manners:

(@ 50% of the share options granted to grantee under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or after
the first date on which dealings in the shares of the
Company commenced on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Date”) to the date immediately before the tenth

anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(b)  50% of the share options granted to grantee under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on
or after the date falling on the first anniversary of the
Listing Date to the date immediately before the tenth

anniversary of the Listing Date.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are not transferable and share options not exercised
within the exercise period will lapse and cease to be of
further effect. All the share options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall lapse automatically and not be
exercisable (to the extent not already exercised) on the expiry

of the option period.

Share options granted prior to the expiration of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that time shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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B R RS EmBRES

REERARESHBRES S
BEARAREZ BRESET
RERF LTI D AN IERER
BRBEE RARHEER BARES
BfTRRHE R

(@ WREEBRAREENBERE
STEIFT R A A BRI B
FrRBEBE B (TEHH
H) zBERELTAB
SEEF Az BHRARE
W By 1) AR R A IR 50 % 8 AR
R

(b) WEEBRAREENBERE
SRR EH RS —EE
FRHEHHZBRERE LD
HEISE+EBEFAAZ B
HA S B B 1) 2 B2 A 42 H50%
R

BERARFERBRESSIET
REZBRESACIER M
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R MY L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #Z2023%3H31HIEEE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The following tables disclose details of movements of share

options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

Year ended 31 March 2023

26. B E @

() BRAOFABERBARES

EIRE:)
TENERBE R AR EAE
BESBBH BRESS Y

%

B F2023F3A3MHLEEFE

Number of share options

fEREHE
SHETG Granted Exercised Lapsed At
option during during during 31 March
type the year  theyear the year 2023
fEhe e 7220235
FER FERRE ER1TE FARKXM  3H31H
Director )
Ang Ming Wah HRREE Tranche 1 32,000 - - - 32,000
Bt
Tranche 2 32,000 - - - 32,000
B
Employees ==
In aggregate &t Tranche 1 52,000 - - (12,000) 40,000
Bt
Tranche 2 52,000 - - (12,000) 40,000
B
Total st 168,000 - - (24,000) 144,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26. BEIGESTE] @)
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) E’ZT\ NESES= Tl ey
= @
Year ended 31 March 2022 8 E2022F3H31HIEEE

Number of share options

BREHE
Share At Granted  Exercised Lapsed At
option 1 April during during during 31 March
type 2021 the year the year the year 2022
BB 20215 220224

it 4B1E FRRY  FR1THE FRKM 3A31H

Director =5
Ang Ming Wah  JHBEZE Tranche 1 32,000 - - - 32,000
it
Tranche 2 32,000 - - - 32,000
FTHE
Employees ==
In aggregate =1 Tranche 1 52,000 - - - 52,000
it
Tranche 2 52,000 - - - 52,000
FTHE
Total 4Bz 168,000 - - - 168,000
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130 xezpssaran



26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

(ii)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

26. lBIRHESE @

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued) i) BRARZERBIHEST
2| @)

Details of the outstanding share options granted under the RIBEEXR L FHEEFBERESTE

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows: BHZzZERTHEERESEN
B

Share option type

Date of grant

Exercisable period

Exercise price

FERG SRR g =R 1T{EHAR TEE
Tranche 1 23 February 2017 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
Bt 201752823H 2017493816 H 2027438 15H 0.42387
Tranche 2 23 February 2017 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
B 20175E2823H 2018%3816H 2027438 15H 0.42%8 7t

144,000 (2022: 168,000) outstanding share options are
exercisable as at 31 March 2023.

The share options outstanding at 31 March 2023 had
weighted average exercise price of HK$0.42 (2022: HK$0.42)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.96
years (2022: 4.96 years).

Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was adopted
by the then sole shareholder (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to eligible participants of the Group and to promote
the success of the business of the Group.

(ii)

®2023%F3831H > 144,00015
(20224 : 168,0001p) i RIT1E
ZHERER2I ] FITE

R2023FE3HB3 1M KITHEZE
RN T EER0.428 T
(20224 : 0.42%7T) » EMEF
BRI G N ELRAS.964 (2022
1 4.96%F) o

fhe st 8l

R2017E2821H > SR —REE
R4 —TERE PR ST B (TEERR M 5t
E

BRESESERS RRERE
FHWAB - AEAEECERS A
EREBINEBURESEER
EHAIHER-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023  #{Z2023F3831HIEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The eligible participants include any employee (full-time
or part-time), director, consultant, adviser, substantial
shareholder, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer,
business partner or service provider of the Group. The basis
of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option
shall be determined by the Company’s board of director
(the “Board”) (or as the case may be, the independent non-
executive directors) from time to time on the basis of his
contribution or potential contribution to the development and

growth of the Group.

The subscription price of a share respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price solely determined by the Board and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of
the closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (i) the nominal value of a share of the Company

on the date of grant of the option.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to
the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an

option is HK$1.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE2023%F3831HIEEE

26. lBIRHESE @

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company as from the
adoption date (excluding, for this purpose, shares issuable
upon exercise of options which have been granted but have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares in issue
as at the Listing Date. Therefore, it is expected that the
Company may grant options in respect of up to 60,000,000
shares (or such numbers of Shares as shall result from a
sub-division or a consolidation of such 60,000,000 Shares
from time to time) to the participants under the Share Option
Scheme.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed at any
time by approval of the shareholders in general meeting
provided that the total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at the date of approval of the refreshed limit. Options
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company) will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating the refreshed 10% limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Group at any time
shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company
from time to time. No share options shall be granted under
any schemes of the Company (including the Share Option
Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit being exceeded.

(ii)

BT E @

B4 H R AR B R st 2
) /N =R et R= R s
FTRENFEEREETEM
BT M BB LR (LUt
SO ERERAEREEIRERER
st B o A A BT A Lt BE AR
STEERE LMV BB IR EE T
MmeFETHRMG)  &EFE8
BREDTHBHEEZBEHTRODN
10% ° AUIL - FEEAAR A T I 1R 1558
BREASIED2EEREIRRS
60,000,0008% & {7 (3 & 7 BF 47 4
8y & 1 560,000,00088 & 15 M 2=
SHRDEHE) BRI

£ PR BI10% IR 28 7] BB B 48 B
RERRARG LMWERSEMR B
ER B R 8 A AT EM
HthfERE SR HN 2 MER
RETEMA BEETHRMD A
OIS BERECEMRESE
HEZETRMHN10% stELEE
H10% R 86 > TRl IR 15 FB AR 1
st8I kAR EE R E MR E S
BRENERE (BEREER
RE ST 8 ;e A 2 B ) H B g
STEIR IR R ERITE - EEH N
BERMHERE) FEHEERC

BEGFELAER RREBR
EstE RAEEBEAEMBRE
STEIREMERTEN 2R
RETEMAYEZETHRD  ®
ERFREEASBEER DN
BETRMHH30% - MREAR
MR8 (BEERESE) &
HERER BB EHMI0%A R
B AR ERHERE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2023  #{Z2023F3831HIEFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of offer
to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of offer to grant. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to

shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

In addition, any grant of an option to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company (or
any of their respective close associates) must be approved
by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of
the option). Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director (or
any of their respective close associates) will result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the shares in issue; and having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of
share options will be subject to, in addition to the approval of

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

No share option under the Share Option Scheme has been

granted since its adoption.
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(ii)

BT E @

BEENRDABILEEM12ER
BB A AREERES S R
EBREMEMERES S B &K
RARUNERE (BEET#HE
RiERTENERE) BTEM
BORATETHRNDEHE > T
FEBREFARANEBNREAHE
EITRMDBI1% - ERIEEIMNR LB
Bz % EIRHERELALRKRR
RIRERAE EH# -

S BAATEE S TETHA
ERTERE (IPEZEWE
ARBHMBEN) BHEABRE
BHEKSBIERNTES (FTEE
B AEIREAR ANERIEILIE
HITER) - M EEREL
BUFEATEES (IRESEW
FABREBHEAN) KRBT AER
EMEREHERE A (B8
ZH) I[EEm12E B #AE A bt
ATHREERES B RARAT
TEEMBRES S BERKRE
ERNEHERE (BFEETE
B EEARTENERE) &
TEMEBETRETETHRMNIE
o AHBBEETRNH0.1%;
RIRERMNERE BT E
5 E M 4EE B 85,000,000 7T
ZHE—TRHBEREBEARAT
REEREAG ERBTHE

BEERESIE T ZBRER
BRESEERMEBRE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE2023%F3831HIEEE

27. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) for certain employees,
the assets of which are held separately from those of the Group in
trustee-administered funds independently. The Group contributes
5% on the employee’s monthly salary to the ORSO Scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employers
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The retirement scheme cost recognised in profit or loss represents
contributions paid or payable to the ORSO Scheme and the MPF
Scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rule of the respective
schemes.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had no significant
obligation apart from the contributions as stated above and there
is no forfeited contribution arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefit schemes and which were available to reduce
contributions payable.

On 9 June 2022, the third reading of a bill for cancelling the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) offsetting mechanism was
passed in the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. After the bill takes effect, the Group can
no longer offset employees’ long-service payments against the
MPF derived from the employers’ mandatory contributions for
the employment period starting from that day. In April 2023, the
government further announced the abolition of the MPF offsetting
mechanism will take effect on 1 May 2025. Apart from MPF
Scheme, the abolition of the offsetting arrangement will also be
applicable to ORSO Scheme.

27. EERAKEF

AEERETREREETRERERNA
fREE ST BIR A (T X RINRIESHE])
sz ERRERRAEBA 58] ZETE
ZEERAEENEESH ARFEA
BEZESBUFE AEEREER
#5% M ERINIRIEST B HRR -

FEBRTREEBRHMEREEZE
A BEEBZENESHEITRE
MrBEEEE (TRREE5E)) -8R
TEtEISHABIURFEAEENERM
TR KRB ET B RIFARESE ) B
TREEEREBZESHEBARALS
[z st B & B AERWARN LRA
30,0008 7T ° Z T BB H R BN 57 & o

R PEBHRANG BN EIEAE
BERESERURENERABER
KR (% 51 8 Ko 3R 18 & 51 8 S2 S SR Y
BYHRR o

FR20235 20223831 H » b _Lai it
N REBMITEE XRSE R EKE
BEERHRBRAEBHNtEMEENEBU
SR JREPR R B R

R2022F6H9H AR AT &L
FAE=EBBECHRAEAES (T
Ba)) B EAR -ERBERE
WE  AEBTEBREEESEEH
EstHE N RIARS & HERENAE
MHHRARMEENBRBEETIERE -1
2023F48 5 KNS #— % 5 MEFfREE
S PG R 20255 1HE R o
BromfE 5T 8190 BEBRE 2 BEI G B
FRPA B 22 3R IR 5t B4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR ER R MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;E2023%F3831HIEEE

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. B AKIE
2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Contracted but not provided for: BEEJAERERE -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  EEEY) % - BB KB 23,410 -
29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29. ERR5
()  Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial () MREEHMBRREAMIBITEE
statements, the Group had no other significant transaction EIN B E2023F ;2022438
with related parties for the years ended 31 March 2023 and S1IHEFE AEEHREAME
2022. ARABEF 5 °
(i)  The remunerations of key management personnel, which iy XEE - FEEEBEAEAAXRT
are the directors of the Company during the year, were as BEOBEZFHMNIIRWT
follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT FAET
Short-term employee benefits HREEF 10,938 10,925
Retirement scheme contributions BIRETEHR 357 353
11,295 11,278

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERRE AR RAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital
and to support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group, to ensure optimal returns to shareholders.

For capital management purpose, the directors of the Company
regard the total equity presented on the consolidated statement of
financial position as capital.

30. EAEIE

AEENEAERERARESEE
SEEEO AT DUBRERE MR
RS ERERRER G REES
2006 MM AR R AR AR E NS
ERME R

AEERBUIERERREERER
R BRAEBRRPVEREZNR I
PR R R R RB O K -

MEXAEEBNMES A ABDEERET
GHMBRRRA2IVB R RER -

2023 2022

20234 20224

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

Lease liabilities HESR& 86 494
Bank borrowings IRITER 2,506 4,034
Total debt HBETS 2,592 4,528
Total equity BT 211,285 195,378
Gearing ratio BARBB/LEE 0.01 timesfZ 0.02 timesfZ
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. A ERE IR

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its use
of financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in its
investment activities. The financial risks include credit risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk and fair value risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarter, in close co-operation with the directors. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the Group’s
short to medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to
financial markets.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. It identifies ways
to access financial markets and monitors the Group’s financial
risk exposure. Regular reports are provided to the directors of the
Company.

(@) Summary of financial assets and liabilities
by category

AEEEENEAREEBRERNHE
REZPEASRIAMAERESE
MBRE MBEREEEERR R
HESAR FXARKRAFERR-

MEREREERAERANRHHAEE
BREFHNBY)SFMLIES - EER
HRENGEERAETRFELER
WHEMREERE BRASIRILHE
& Bl % L o

AEEB BRI IEFL LK B MmE S
REEETMIB -HYaEEERT
GREEFEBMBRARNTGE LA
ARBEFRRXERRS °

(a) BERETHNEREER
BEME

2023 2022
20234 20224F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Financial assets EREE
Amortised cost: B AT AR
Trade receivables B 5 e EIA 80,884 104,019
Deposits and other receivables &R EMERFRIE 474 457
Cash and cash equivalents BEKRIBEEEY 153,957 117,213
235,315 221,689
Financial liabilities Ed A=Y
Amortised cost: B AT AR
Trade payables B2 RIE 14,653 16,331
Accruals, deposits and EEER e M
other payables HhpE s 2,034 2,422
Bank borrowings RITER 2,506 4,034
Lease liabilities HEaR 86 494
19,279 23,281

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #{Z2023%3H31HIEEE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributed to its trade and
other receivables and cash and bank balances. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis and follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk with two
customers with trade receivables of HK$45,236,000 (2022:
two customers of HK$52,639,000) as at 31 March 2023,

For trade receivables, the Group reassesses the lifetime
expected credit losses at the end of the reporting period
to ensure the adequate impairment losses are made for
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of default
occurring since initial recognition.

The Group applies collective basis to measure the expected
credit losses. As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the expected
loss rates applied in the provision matrix are determined with
reference to the debtors’ shared credit risk characteristics,
including background of the customers and their historical
payment behaviour, historical credit loss on the trade
receivables and information pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtors operate.

31. UEREKEIRE @

(b) EERER

FEENEERBREEERANH
B 7 R EMBURRIBEUKRIRE R
RITEHRMEN - BEEEERE
—EFERR mEEERARRK
RECEREG T A RIBET
LWL EIEHR & F o

R2023FE3831H  "EBEHA &
FEERK WMEEFNEZRE
U R IB A45,236,0007 7T (2022
F I MBEEF52,639,000587T) °

MEZEUBREMS > FERER
BEMRENTEEHRAEE
B518 0 LURE (R B 7)) 45 78 58 LAk 3%
ERVEA P AE I 3L R fR A 1 N
R B SR ERIR R o

AEEERAEREEGEERE
BEEE o R2023F K20224E3 4
S1H > EAREEERNTERES
BENLKL2EEHFANEREE
RAREFE BEEFRFEEREB
EERTAH BEZEKRTIENBS
T EEEBREBAMEZLE
RIBEZERMETE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR ER R MIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;E2023%F3831HIEEE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continvea)  31. B 75 B b5 B IE @)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) 15 B @
The following table provided information about the Group's TREHEHENREBRAE
exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables as at the FRARIEEERR N E 5 EWIE
end of the reporting period: 2R EERBEBEE ZER

As at 31 March 2023
11202338318

Average
expected Gross
credit loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
TEI9FEHE
EEEBE=XR IREAAE E5iE R A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET FA&T
Not yet past due %) A< A1 A 0.11% 30,911 35
Less than one month past due B DR —@EH 0.12% 41,371 50
One to three months past due BE—Z==1EH 0.36% 4,459 16
More than three months past due  #EA =183 U £ 2.88% 4,370 126
81,111 227

As at 31 March 2022
$2202243831H

Average
expected Gross
credit loss carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
FITEER
EEBEX IREAE BiaRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FHETT FAT
Not yet past due 5 A< B HE 0.10% 41,621 40
Less than one month past due wmE R —E B 0.10% 51,784 53
One to three months past due BH—Z==1EH 0.21% 5,710 12
More than three months past due  #EEA =182 U £ 0.95% 5,057 48

104,172 153

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

31. UEREKEIRE @

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERE @
For deposits and other receivables, the Group has assessed mEcREMERFEBEmMS &
and concluded that the expected credit loss for these RHEEEBAORRE ~EBEETH
receivables is insignificant based on the risk of default of BB ERAAREI2EATE
those counterparties under 12-month ECL approach. Thus, HEEBERLZ BHREEREY
no loss allowance was recognised as at 31 March 2023 and ZERWARBEAEZE AL ¥
2022. 2023 20224 3H31 H It =g
R
The credit risk for cash and bank balances is considered RERIRITERNGEE R AL
negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with RER A sRESER
high quality external credit ratings. IBEETFRITEERFEEN
R1To
None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral KEENESHEEMBERFEY
or other credit enhancement. REMEEBEETHER
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade B RW B BIREERED)
receivables is as follows: W
HK$’000
FHET
Balance at 1 April 2021 20214818 Z &5k 285
Reversal of impairment loss during the year, net  FERIBEEEEE] > F 48 82)
Balance at 31 March 2022 120223831 H 2 &k 153
Provision for impairment loss during the year, net FERIBEEEEE > F 48 74
Balance at 31 March 2023 120233831 H 2 &gk 227
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

3. BRI EIRE @
(c) mEIE LR

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

142

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities.
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with bank covenants, to
ensure the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major banks and
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

MENE 5 B R 22 2 5 B R R
EREERHEEERANEENA
BRERE - AEREREEEES
REMEARERERESTA
HHRBETAR  B7TFEHEE
TREEERR-

FEBNBRRASEREZERL R
EEBRRHARTERENGR
B UEERAEBRERTEREN
REFERNRIBERRBRTRE
M BESENNEITNRER
B UEMEEAKRREHN
RBETFH K

TRAPFEFEESHREENERS
HARRER FEMEHBER HE
RAMBRRERE (BERAS
WA R (R TZBHXR) BRE
S BHRTHXRSERRN B
B) RAEBRAEAXNTHNRT
HHe

As at 31 March 2023
112023538318

Total
contractual Within one
Carrying undiscounted year or on
amount amount demand
[EHESEN T R—FRA
IREE MIBHA%E FIEER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET FHET
At 31 March 2023 1#20235F3H31H
Trade payables B ERIE 14,653 14,653 14,653
Accruals, deposits and EstER - BE &K
other payables HinE=Ia 2,034 2,034 2,034
Lease liabilities GEN == 86 87 87
Bank borrowings IRITER 2,506 2,556 2,556
19,279 19,330 19,330
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 31. BAFEEAEEIE @)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

(c) MEEERME @

Total
contractual Within
Carrying  undiscounted one year or More than
amount amount on demand one year
BETARMIR R—FER
REME TRIBAEEE I ER —FME
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH7T FHT T
At 31 March 2022 #202243H31H
Trade payables B S BN FIE 16,331 16,331 16,331 -
Accruals, deposits and  FEFTE R -IRE K
other payables HAEIRIE 2,422 2,422 2,422 -
Lease liabilities HE&RE 494 510 423 87
Bank borrowings RITER 4,034 4,120 4,120 -
23,281 23,383 23,296 87

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors of the Company considered it is unlikely that the
banks will exercise its discretion to demand immediate

ERIAEBNVHRR &=
BEER R RITAKATENE
BERIUMNER - ZRFDEEFR

repayment. The directors of the Company considered that the 7 WITERRRE TR
bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled HNERHZEmEE 8T EEE
payment dates set out in the loan agreements which are =
summarised in the table below:
Total More than More than
contractual Less than one year two years
Carrying undiscounted  one year or but less than but less than
amount amount  on demand two years five years
FHEES: 3 —&R —EN0E MENLE
BREE RIAEE HEFEER EIRRE EOREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FHET FAET TR
At 31 March 2023 }#2023%
3831H 2,506 2,564 1,622 942 -
At 31 March 2022 7120224
3H31H 4,034 4174 1,624 1,624 926
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023  #{Z2023F3831HIEFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from variable rate bank
balances and bank borrowings. Exposure to interest rate
risk exists on those balances subject to floating interest rate
when there are unexpected adverse interest rate movements.
The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk, working
within an agreed framework, to ensure that there are no
unduly exposures to significant interest rate movements and
rates are approximately fixed when necessary.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for bank borrowings at the
end of the year. The analysis is prepared assuming amounts
of these financial instruments outstanding at the end of
the year were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
points increase or decrease in the prevailing rates of relevant
banks is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
for variables rate bank borrowings, with all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$10,000 (2022:
HK$17,000).

No sensitivity analysis of bank balances of the Group is
presented as the interest income from bank balances is
negligible.

Fair value risk

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the Group’s financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED
KIBEZERRE AR RAR
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(d)

(e)
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32. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 32.

OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

mERERERMEE

METHEENEEHEK !

Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings
HEaE IRITE™
(note 20) (note 21)
(Fz%20) (F45E21)
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TAET FET
At 1 April 2021 122021 5F481H 455 5,644
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSREEDH) .
Repayment of bank borrowings BIRIRITER - (1,510)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilites A& & BRI DT (770) -
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilites ~ fA & & &F] B3 D 4= 27) -
Total changes from financing cash flows MBEREREEB)4E%E (797) (1,510)
Other changes: HhEs)
New leases WmiEE 809 -
Interest expenses FERX 27 -
At 31 March 2022 Kt2022%3H31H 494 4,034
Changes from financing cash flows: MBERS RS .
Repayment of bank borrowings Tﬁt’fﬁﬁf ERA - (1,528)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilites A& & &£ 3D T =R (408) -
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities EaEMNESO IR (15) -
Total changes from financing cash flows MERSREEENIEE (423) (1,528)
Other change: HAth &%) :
Interest expenses FMEMX 15 -
At 31 March 2023 12023FE3H31H 86 2,506
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;ZE2023%F38331HIEFE

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. "’ A BB FER R R
THE COMPANY

2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M5 FHET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN S 34 - -
Current assets REEE
Prepayments FETFRIB 113 150
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NI RS 58,159 56,979
Cash and cash equivalents BEKRIBEEEY 6,785 7,054
65,057 64,183
Current liabilities =R
Accruals, deposits and other payables FEstE R 2SR
Hih S FRIE 52 122
52 122
Net current assets and net assets MENEEFEREEE 65,005 64,061
EQUITY R
Share capital &N 24 6,000 6,000
Reserves G 25 59,005 58,061
Total equity AR AR 65,005 64,061
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 EEEEZ2023F6 8198 L E R
June 2023 and signed on its behalf by: BHEWAHAUTRARESE .
Ng Sing Mui Sze Tan Nei
REEN HE 31
Director Director
BE BE
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34. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

35.

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFSER R 5L

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #ZE202353331HIEFE

34. RMIBAB 2R

MBABFBNT !

Place of Equity interest owned
incorporation/ Issued ordinary by the Company
Name of subsidiary operation share capital At 31 March Principal activities
3 1A BETEER FAEMIA3AE
MEAR%E RE R [N BENRE TEXH
%
2023 2022
20225
Directly held:
BEiEFE
Winson Group Hong Kong Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong Us $1 100 100 Investment holding
KIEEEBEBRAE EBEZEE/ 1%E7T KEZER
54
Perma Growth Investment Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong US $1 100 100 Dormant
KEERRAF RBELHE/ 1%E7T I fEE
548
Indirectly held:
g .
Winson Cleaning Service Company  Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 100 100 Provision of environmental
Limited hygiene and related services
and airline catering support
services
KIEEZRFB B RS 54 6,000,0007 7T RHERBFHE RAEERBEU
R B B ARTS
Winson Professional Pest Control Hong Kong HK$8,275,000 100 100 Provisions of pest
Company Limited management services
BEEERRERAT 548 8,275,000/ 7T REEBEERY
Wealthy Strong Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$6,652,026 100 100 Property holding
EREERRAE 54 6,652,026 7T MERH

None of the subsidiaries of the Company had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of or any time during the reporting periods.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 17 February 2023, the Group entered into the provisional
agreement with an independent third party, the vendor, pursuant
to which the Group agreed to acquire, and the vendor agreed
to sell, a property located in Hong Kong at the consideration of
HK$21,411,500. In June 2023, the acquisition of property has been
completed. Further details of this transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 17 February 2023.

35.

MERARBDWBAT N KRS HARIR
SHREAREBEEEAEREERR
F5aa oy e

HEHREE

FR2023FE 281 7TH  AEBEBIIFE =
HFEHEREwSZ BIb> A& H
FERBEMESFRELE —BURSE
B B 521,411,500 7T 1
2023 6R MEWBECTEM - BEZ
RENE—FHBHNARABEES
2023F2B17THM AL -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
RS2

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group & #% B A B Fr T B S BAZ AR S B RS IRER M
for the five years ended 31 March 2023, as extracted from the audited ~ ZAREE & F£2023F3H31H It AEFEE /Y2
consolidated financial statements issued by the Company is set EBURBEREGEHEHINN T - BEL L
out below. The summary does not form part of the audited financial B AT IZ B FERFKA —=ZL 5 o

statements.

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20224 20214 20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FET FEx FET FET

Results #iE
Revenue W 462,197 473,685 529,087 569,559 537,324
Profit for the year FREF 24,745 22,096 73,809 20,702 20,842

Assets and liabilites BERKR&E

Total assets HBEE 275,013 264,233 276,464 207,652 191,686
Total liabilities B{E4BEE 63,728 68,855 67,782 72,779 67,495
Total equity e 4BEE 211,285 195,378 208,682 134,873 124,191
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